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Revenue up

160% to
$3.15 million
( )2016: $1.21 million

Pre-exceptional EBITDA* up

302%  to
$2.00 million
(2016: $0.50 million)

Adjusted earnings
per share** up

305% to
8.9c
(2016: 2.2c)

Net cash was

$3.1 million
(2016: $0.20 million)
following raise of $5.1
million (gross) via placing

* earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation

** based on pre-exceptional
earnings after tax

Statutory profit before tax

$1.10 million
(2016 0.36 million): $

(as reported) up

KEY  METRICS

204% to
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, it gives me
pleasure to present Pelatro Plc's maiden results,
which mark our first year reporting as an AIM-
quoted public company.

The past year has been one of progress for
Pelatro, marked by strong operational
performance and strategic development, which
culminated with the Group's IPO which was
successfully completed in December 2017 with a
$5.1 million equity placing. The IPO has provided
us with a stronger, more efficient capital
structure, giving the Group better financial and
operational flexibility to pursue its growth
strategy.

Pelatro is well positioned in a high growth
market, is well funded and has a determined and
experienced management team, backed by
skilled software developers and sales and
marketing professionals. Demand for Pelatro's

product is robust and the environment for data
analytics capability for telcos remains attractive
and we have a clear focus on delivering the
strategy for growth which we set out in the
Admission Document at the time of our IPO.

I would like to take this opportunity to welcome
all our new investors. I would also like to thank all
employees for their continued dedication and
hard work which, aligned with our demonstrated
skill sets, gives every confidence for a successful
future for the Group. The Board expects further
positive progress to be made in 2018 which has
already started positively with our largest ever
new customer win.

Richard Day
Chairman

CHAIRMAN'S  STATEMENT

April 30, 2018
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The year that just passed, 2017, was an eventful
year for your company in more ways than one.
Apart from consolidating our position in the
telecom space with multiple customer
engagements, we successfully concluded our
IPO on AIM and became a publicly traded
company. Along the way, we introduced a new
corporate structure for the Group, launched a
new version of our advanced product mViva and
recorded a growth of 161% in revenue. These
achievements would not have been possible
without the strong foundation on which the
business has been built and I am delighted to
share more details of the key pillars of that
foundation.

The principal activity of the Group is the
development and sale of precision marketing
software for use by its customers in B2C
applications, with the current focus being on
p r o v i d i n g m u l t i - c h a n n e l c a m p a i g n
management software to telcos that enables a
contextualised, relevant and personalised

The business

solution for their end users. Pelatro's precision
marketing solution, mViva, uses Big Data
analytics to study growing end user data to
reveal patterns, trends, associations and key
behavioural traits. mViva then applies algorithms
to analyse this data and to identify patterns for
each end user. Based on this analysis, relevant
offers (which can include additional services or
customised campaigns) are made to end users
through a variety of channels like SMS, email and
apps. mViva allows customers to generate
smaller relevant segments of end users, which
can be as small as one end user. By using mViva's
targeted approach, Pelatro's customers have
experienced an increase of up to 5 per cent. of
annual incremental revenue per end user
through the upselling of products.

mViva is currently deployed by seven telcos
across Asia, Africa and the Caribbean and is being
implemented in one other. These contracts
mean the software will be used by telcos to
target a combined user base of more than 150
million.

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT
Dear Shareholder,
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Industry

The telecom industry continues to grapple with
reducing Average Revenue Per User (ARPU)
coupled with a high level of churn. Adding to this
is the changing nature of the subscribers who
have become increasingly demanding.
Responding to such a scenario in an effective
manner, to ensure increasing revenue and
profitability, calls for a deep understanding of
subscriber behaviour and trends. This opens up a
plethora of opportunities for Pelatro to assist the
telcos to overcome these challenges thereby
ensuring increasing business through licensing
and support of our product, mViva.

For the past couple of decades, the industry has
been exploring the possibility of offering non
telecom products from other B2C companies to
its telecom customers and also to address the
customers of those B2C companies to with
telecom products. This presents a significant
opportunity to the telcos who have the large
base among retail customers. Telcos are in a
strong position to leverage the ubiquity of
mobile phones across the world. Further, the
telcos have valuable data about their subscribers
and this data is getting enriched by the day due
to the increasing level of interactions using
mobile phones for a variety of transactions like
purchases, deposits, cash transfers, hotel
reservations, ticket bookings etc. apart from the
conventional telecom related activities like calls,
downloads, browsing etc. In depth and
continuous analysis of this data provides deep
understanding of the behaviour of each
subscriber and paves the way for further
commercial interaction. This phenomenon and
the consequent value proposition have never
been stronger than today.

Telcos are now finding themselves on the cusp of
a data-led revolution which could be a panacea
for their pains thereby delivering superior
revenue gains, profitability and above all, a
sustainable and valuable business model. A very
large number of use cases are becoming a reality
due to the nature of transactions and usage in
the mobile world. For example, a telco can easily

help an insurance company to identify potential
customers for overseas travel insurance on the
basis of roaming data that is readily available with
the telco. Taking one step forward, the telco can
provide valuable data about subscribers who
stay in hotels regularly to a hospitality chain
thereby paving the way for targeted selling of
hotel room packages to those individuals

Pelatro invests significantly in product
development, which is delivered from our
Software Development Centre in Bangalore,
India. We have adopted an agile development
strategy thereby ensuring a continuous
programme of enhancements. This differentiates
mViva from legacy vendor systems, serves to
promote ongoing customer success and
maintains our competitive advantage. We also
develop chargeable upgrades to the platform to
drive growth in existing accounts.

mViva has been built using Big Data technology
to enable processing of large volumes of data,
streaming in at a high velocity from a wide variety
of sources. This is achieved by integrating mViva
in both northbound and southbound directions.
Upon collecting all the required data in real time,
mViva analyses the data to arrive at appropriate
findings to help send relevant and contextual
campaigns. mViva is highly advanced and
employs machine language, algorithms,
sophisticated statistical techniques etc.

Platform
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Revenue models

Global operations

Pelatro's primary revenue model, currently, is to
licence the mViva application on a perpetual
basis, combining licensing and support and
maintenance. Software licences are typically
ring-fenced by a scope of use based on
quantitative limitations, such as subscriber
numbers. This ensures that the charges are
appropriately aligned to the value being
received by the customer and provides
opportunities for additional fees for higher usage
in the future. Pelatro has revenue share
engagement with certain customers. In this case,
the incremental revenue generated for the telco
by mViva is shared with Pelatro, as per a pre
agreed percentage, every month.

Over time, the Group intends to offer a managed
services model, where the entire campaigning
activity is undertaken by a Pelatro team for a fixed
fee, which is payable every month.

Our business functions, including research,
deve lopment , customer support and
administrative functions such as finance, legal
and HR are managed primarily from Bangalore.
Sales personnel are mobile globally, and the

international board is based in London. Pelatro
Plc, UK is the holding company of the Group and
Pelatro LLC, US; Pelatro Pte. Ltd., Singapore and
Pelatro Solutions Private Limited, India are its
wholly owned subsidiaries.

We recognise that retaining and nurturing talent
is crucial to our long-term objective of becoming
one of the world's leading providers of Precision
Marketing Solution. Our aim is to be a highly
valued and responsible employer across the
industry. We aim to create an agile, highly
motivated and collaborative workforce, with its
strength coming from collaboration between
seasoned professionals with deep client industry
experience and some of the brightest young
technology talent on the market.

Talent

mViva

Advise of rewards

to Billing SystemRated Records
From Billing System

CRM Portal

SMS Gateway

USSD Gateway

Advise rewards
to IN via XML RPC/

Web services

Demographics from
Billing System

Incoming voice/SMS
from  MSC

Rated Record
from IN Platform

Prepaid Postpaid Common to both

mViva Integration
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Strategy

Our strategy has been crafted to ensure growth
and leadership in the industry that we operate in.
The primary focus is on providing a superior
experience to our customers by delivering next
generation technology. This is buttressed by a
gradual move towards developed markets and
multiple sectors. This has been interwoven with
other key elements to arrive at an expanded and
detailed strategy to propel us to leadership and
we call this the Five Petal Strategy.

Extreme focus in a niche, we believe, delivers rich
dividends. This laser focus allows us to become
specialists in that area thereby paving the way to
be a natural leader in that space. This focus then
reflects in our product and the domain expertise
of the workforce. In a very short span of time,
customers appreciate this deep knowledge
which is constantly leveraged to meet the
growing and changing expectations of the
customers. This dovetails well into Product
Innovation.

It is our stated objective to have the most
advanced product in the industry that we
operate in. In our quest for leadership, we
regular ly compete with la rge globa l
organisations and effectively use the advanced
nature of our product to win against them time
and gain. The superior nature of our product, at
all points in time, enables us to stand apart from
others, including technology leaders, on a global
scale. Constant innovation and application of the
latest technologies is the essence of this aspect
of our strategy and effectively buttresses our
quest for leadership.

The approach here is to ensure even paced
investment which is incremental in nature
instead a big bang approach. This helps us to
mitigate risks and ensures achievement of

Niche focus

Product innovation

Incremental investment model

attractive financial metrics. This dovetails well
into Local Presence Leveraging Global
Resources.

We are a truly global organisation. This is a result
of the manner in which we structure ourselves
seeking and establishing resources across the
world. Thus, high quality technical resources are
based in a global technology hub in Bangalore,
India where such resources are plentifully
available at acceptable cost. At the same time,
customer facing resources for sales and support
are positioned all around the world to ensure and
leverage proximity to the customers, common
culture , common language and local
relationships.

The enhanced balance sheet and diversification
of the Board with the addition of the
independent non-executive Directors ahead of
our IPO positions the Group well to continue its
strategy of growth, both organically and
potentially through targeted acquisitions. This
aspect of the strategy will only be deployed very
carefully and opportunistically with the primary
objective being to acquire customers at a faster
pace. In keeping with that approach, any
acquisitions will be in our area of operation or in
adjacent areas.

The business opportunities for your company are
significant, given the challenges faced by the
telecom operators and the clear opportunities
which are unfolding for them not only to survive,
but also to grow in a sustainable manner. Taking
advantage of those possibilities to deliver growth
can only be achieved through vision, strategic
thinking and flawless execution. Hence our focus
on “building the best”. Starting with a high
quality work force, progressing through cutting
edge technology and culminating in superior
results is our plan to exceed your expectations.

I take this opportunity to thank every one of our
stakeholders for reposing your confidence in
Pelatro. “Building the best” is not merely a tag line
for us. It actually, is the very essence of our
existence.

Local presence leveraging global resources

Inorganic growth

Building the best

Niche
Focus

Product
Innovation

Growth
Leadership

Incremental
Investment

Model

Local
Presence

Leveraging
Global

Resources

Inorganic
Growth

Subash Menon
Managing Director

April 30, 2018
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Introduction

Precision Marketing

Our Solution

After a per iod of rap id growth , the
telecommunications market is beginning to
show signs of maturing as a business
segment. Customers now tend to look at
telecommunications services as a utility and this
is driving commoditisation and a corresponding
decrease in margins for telcos. The industry is
moving towards saturation with respect to its
customer base with penetration in excess of
100% in most markets. Hence the need of the
hour is to grow revenue from existing customers.
In essence, the lever for managing revenue
growth has changed from customer acquisition
to from existing customers.

This scenario has necessitated the introduction
of Precision Marketing. Precision
Marketing is founded on the principle of using
data-driven insights to deliver the right message,
to the right person, at the right time. Precision
marketing requires full knowledge of the needs
and behaviour of each customer in their
individual The approach is to be more

and not product- or campaign-
centric. This is what a Precision Marketing
Solution achieves, through the use of a two-
pronged strategy based on increasing the
lifetime value of the customer and on reducing
the churn of existing customers.

maximizing value

one-to-one,

context.

customer-centric

mViva is such a next generation solution focused
on using contextual data coupled with relevant
micro-segmentation to facilitate Precision
Marketing. The idea is to use contextual data to
come up with offers and actions that would be
relevant and interesting to a pin-pointed
segment, or even one individual.

mViva employs Big Data Analytics resulting in a
large amount of relevant data being gleaned
from transaction records of the customer such as
calls, revenue, data consumed, recharges,

messages, downloads, complaints etc.
Intelligent algorithms are then applied to crunch
through these large volumes of data to identify
patterns and the context of each customer. Each
customer is then provided with a relevant offer, if
applicable. The system has the ability to work
with quad play telecom operators, servicing
post-paid, pre-paid, broadband, internet and TV
customers.

These days, it is very important that the
marketing department of the telco be
empowered with easy access to data and
analytics as this increases business velocity,
which is a critical need. mViva being an advance
Precision Marketing solution, is equipped with
the following functionalities:

Thus, mViva is a comprehensive, all-in-one
solution that acts as a one-stop shop for the
marketing team. For instance, mViva provides all
the analytical information that an analyst would
need to arrive at the campaigns that they would
want to launch.

�

�

�

�

�

�

Campaign configuration

Campaign execution

Fulfilment

Campaign reporting

Analytics

Artificial Intelligence and Machine Learning

PRECISION MARKETING IN THE
TELECOMMUNICATIONS INDUSTRY
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After the campaign is configured, mViva
executes the campaign automatically and
monitors customer behaviour for affirmative
action. Thereafter, fulfilment of relevant rewards
is provided and information fed back into the
solution for reporting and the application of
Artificial Intelligence and Machine Learning. The
use of AI-ML is tightly integrated within mViva
and this facilitates the user getting actionable
insights very quickly. Predictive and Prescriptive
Analytics is used within mViva with features like
automatic suggestion of offers, what-if, CPS, NBA
and so on.

All this has made mViva a next generation
Precision Marketing System and enabled it to
achieve a superior position. A key facilitator has
been the use of patent opening technologies in

leveraging the latest technologies associated
with Big Data. Some of the key differentiators of
mViva are listed below:

�

�

�

�

�

Intelligent use of latest technologies in Big
Data Analytics leading to innovative solutions
(some of which are being patented)
Comprehensive approach to campaigning
which addresses various stakeholders such as
customers and retailers
Focused on telecom with significant level of
domain knowledge captured in the product
Marketing to "Segment of One" (or N=1)
which significantly increases relevance
Extensive use of AI-ML (Artificial Intelligence
and Machine Learning) within the product
with prescriptive, predictive and descriptive
analytics

From here, they move on seamlessly to campaign definition with precise and flexible functionality that
allow very complex campaigns to be configured. It is even possible to look up the behaviour of each
individual customer, to help with the decision making.
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based on whether they are consumers of data
or voice and offers made to each group
appropriately:

Customers with calls and sms activity
with high probability to churn: Offer 1:
Customers from this group will automatically
receive on-net X hours bonus packs once their
weekly spend reaches particular amount; Offer 2:
Customers from this group will automatically
receive on-net X hours bonus pack upon
particular amount of recharge within 1 week.

Customers with strong data activity,
with high potential to churn: Offer 1: Customers
from this group will automatically receive XGB
bonus pack once their weekly spend reaches
particular amount; Offer 2: Customers from this
group will automatically receive XGB bonus pack
after they make particular amount of recharge
within 1 week.

Group 1:

Group 2:

This unique vision and combination of
functionalities has resulted in telcos seeing very
significant benefits arising from both the
increased relevance and variety of campaigns,
leading to:

Significant revenue impact (an increase of 3 to
5% in some cases)
Increased offer acceptance (in the high teens)
Reduced time to market (reduced time to
configure campaigns by 50 to 75%)

�

�

�

Operating impact

� Intuitive, flexible and user-friendly solution
that allows a large variety of campaigns, which
can be configured and executed in a very
short time

Telco customers generate a huge amount of data
which enables the telco to come up with very
relevant campaigns that help them to increase
the revenue from their existing customers and to
retain those that might be showing tendencies
of churn or reduction in usage. Some sample use
cases are given below:

- segment customers

based on data usage, revenue etc. A customer in
medium segment for revenue and data usage
might receive an offer to download 5 times Daily
Download Volume in 3 days and get 2 times
Weekly Data Volume to use in 3 days (offer A); if
customer takes offer A, he will receive an offer to
Recharge for 2 times his Most Preferred Recharge
Value (MPRV) and get 2 times Weekly Data
Volume to use within 3 days (offer B); if the
customer does not take offer A, he will receive an
offer to Download 3 times Daily D o w n l o a d
Volume in 3 days and get 3 times Weekly Data
Volume to spend in 3 days (offer C).

- segment customers based on

usage, revenue, age in network, Engagement
Index etc. A customer with high EI and medium
spend might receive an offer to upgrade to next
higher plan and get a rebate of 20% in the next
bill.

Segment

customers and identify those that are likely to
churn, using Churn Propensity Score (CPS). These
customers will be split further into two groups

Multi-wave Campaign

Plan Upgrade

High Churn Treatment Campaign -

Sample Use Cases
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Executive Director

April 30, 2018



PSPL, the Group's software development centre,
as having been in place for the whole of the year,
in the financial year 2017, 25 members of staff
joined and 7 members of staff resigned.

In addition, the Group monitors certain non-
financial performance indicators at an
operational level, including the number of new
customers in the year, Requests for Proposal
("RFPs") received, movement of sales pipeline
and Change Requests. However, none of these
are currently considered to be individually
appropriate as a measure of overall strategy
execution success. In addition, the Group
monitors certain non-financial performance
indicators at an operational level, including the
number of new customers in the year, Requests
for Proposal ("RFPs") received, movement of sales
pipeline and Change Requests. However, none of
these are currently considered to be individually
appropriate as a measure of overall strategy
execution success. All KPIs are reviewed annually
and this includes consideration of appropriate
non-financial KPIs.

As the business develops the Board will consider
adding, as appropriate, further KPIs to monitor
progress against a broader range of objectives.

Introduction

Non- financial performance indicators

The Directors consider that revenue, adjusted
EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation
and Amortisation) (see Note 7 for adjustments)
and adjusted profit before tax are key
performance indicators ("KPIs") in measuring
Group financial performance, and will continue
to be so as the profile of the Group changes as a
result of future licences and other commercial
agreements are concluded. The performance of
the Group in this latter area is set out in detail in
the Financial Review.

In addition, the Directors also believe that a
further important KPI is the Group's rate of cash
expenditure and its effect on Group cash
resources. Net cash inflows from operating
activities for FY 2017 were $45,000 (2016:
$447,000), such reduction being largely as a
result of working capital movements as the
Group grew revenue from larger contracts.
Further details of cash flows in 2017 are set out in
the consolidated statement of cash flow on page
34.

In a small business with a high proportion of well
qualified and experienced staff the rate of staff
turnover is seen as an important KPI. Treating

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
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sales investment in Central Asia where we see
significant opportunity for new business and
rapid growth. We continue to develop the mViva
offering to extend market reach.

We are continually investing in product
development and operational requirements to
support mViva-led growth. Failure to achieve
meaningful returns on investments would
hinder the Group's strategic growth plan and
potentially jeopardise the Group's position in the
market and its prospects.

The management team was strengthened prior
to the IPO, which provides greater control and
efficiency to operations. Strong communication
lines between relevant stakeholders are ensured
through regular formal meetings and monthly
reporting. The Board reviews and challenges all
strategic investments.

Issues or failures with our software products or
services could lead to failed implementations,
project delays, cost overruns, data loss, security
issues , customer dissat is fact ion, ear ly
termination, service level breaches and
contractual claims, all of which could adversely
impact the Group's revenues, earnings and
reputation.

The risks of servicing large telcos are significant
but generally stable and well understood, and

Management of risk

Misdirected product, operational or strategic

investments

Product and service delivery failures

Introduction

Winning new business in line with plan

Our aim is to recognise and address the key risks
and uncertainties facing the Group at all levels of
our business.

There are a number of risk factors that could
adversely affect the Group's execution of its
strategic plan and, more generally, the Group's
operations, business model, financial results,
future performance, solvency, or the value or
liquidity of its equity. The Board is committed to
addressing these risks by implementing systems
for effective risk management and internal
control.

The Board has performed an assessment of the
principal risks and uncertainties that could
threaten Pelatro's business, business model,
strategies, financial results, future performance,
solvency or liquidity. The items listed below
represent the known principal risks and
uncertainties but does not list all known or
potential risks and uncertainties exhaustively.
Where possible, mitigation steps are taken to
safeguard against materialised risks.

Central to our strategic growth plan is winning
new mViva contracts. Failure to do so would
directly impact our achievement of overall
objectives or lengthen the period taken to
achieve them. Specifically, failure to win new
mViva contracts early enough in a financial year
would jeopardise our ability to deliver the
implementations and recognise the associated
revenues in that financial year.

We continue to see strong market demand for
mViva solutions, but the risks associated with
timing, type, mix and quantum of revenues
remain unchanged as these factors are largely
driven by customers' requirements and
budgeting processes. Sales cycles are often very
lengthy and may sometimes be delayed or
restructured late in the process.

We have strengthened our sales and marketing
operations in order to build greater pipeline
visibility and grow revenues faster. In addition to
existing efforts In South and South-East Asia and
Africa, and the US, we are concentrating our new

Management of risk

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 2
0

1
7

14



Pelatro has not suffered any material product or
service failures since inception. Risks are
generally greater with new clients, but formal
RFP processes are routinely carried out by telcos,
which provides clarity as to requirements and
expectations.

Pelatro mitigates inherent product and service
risks through robust quality assurance and
project governance processes. Product releases
are unit tested prior to delivery and subjected to
further customer testing prior to first use.
Customer testing and acceptance sign-offs are
required prior to go-live.

The Group is generally exposed to economic,
trade and market risk factors, such as global or
localised economic downturn, changing
international trade relationships, foreign
exchange fluctuations, consolidation or
insolvency of existing or prospective customers
or competitor products, all of which could
significantly threaten Pelatro's performance and
prospects. Pelatro's current focus on emerging
markets customers may increase such risks.

Mitigation against the short-term impact of such
risks is provided through an increasing spread of
geographies and customers. Pelatro monitors
political developments and will seek to mitigate
emerging risks where possible. Pelatro's high
margin revenues provide a level of protection
against volatile economic or market conditions
and our policy of ongoing product development
helps us to maintain our competitive advantage.

The Group depends on its ability to attract and
retain qualified management and software
engineering personnel. Competition for such
personnel is intense. Whilst the Group has
entered into employment arrangements with its
key personnel with the aim of securing their
services for minimum terms, the retention of
their services cannot be guaranteed.

A loss or material issue with key members of staff
could cause material disruption and skills

Management of risk

Management of risk

Economic, international trade and market

condition

People risks

s

shortage. Competitor poaching could result in
intellectual property leakage. Staff misconduct,
negligence or fraud could cause Pelatro
significant reputational damage and potential
financial loss.

People risks are currently considered to be stable,
but liable to increase as the Group expands.
However, rapid growth presents opportunities
for personal development for key staff and
engages the workforce generally.

The Group aims to provide a fulfilling and
rewarding working environment, with strong
culture and ethics. Key staff are identified
through talent assessments and retention
plans are implemented, particularly the
encouragement of equity ownership by all
employees. Security and access control systems,
internal governance processes and compliance
procedures are in place; furthermore, the Group
has a policy of organising its research and
development so that its projects are not
dependent on any one individual.

A significant IP loss, third party IP challenge, data
loss, security breach or cyber-attack could
significantly threaten Pelatro's ability to do
business, particularly in the short term, and could
result in significant financial loss.

We implement robust processes across IP and IT
systems, which are overseen by the Head of
Engineering.

The international software industry is subject to
rapid and substantial technological change.
There can be no assurance that developments by
others will not render the Group's developments
obsolete or uncompetitive.

significant reputational damage
and potential financial loss.

The Group employs highly qualified software
engineers and senior management who monitor
and are aware of developments in technology
that might affect its research capability and
product evolution.

Management of risk

Management of risk

Management of Risk

IP, data and cyber risks

Competition and technology
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As all the Group's revenue is in US Dollars, there is
no impact on revenue arising from foreign
exchange movements.

Cost of sales includes both the expensed
element of software development costs (2017:
$525,000; 2016: $632,000) as well as the cost of
hardware purchased on behalf of end customers
(2017: $274,000; 2016: $nil). The element of cost
of sales relating to software development
expenses reduced due to a higher level of costs
which were required to be capitalised under the
Group's accounting policies.

Pre-exceptional overheads increased by around
360% to $343,000 (2016: $75,000), largely as a
result of directors' remuneration (which was not
paid in 2016), partly due to higher amounts of
commission payable on increased revenue, and
also due to higher legal and professional costs
associated with the growing complexity of the
Group.

Overhead costs also include the net cost of
foreign exchange movements which resulted in
a gain in the year of $15,000 (2016: nil). This gain
arises principally from the impact of the
strengthening of Pounds Sterling on the
translation into US Dollars of the IPO proceeds,

arising in the UK, the Group is exposed also to

Cost of sales

Overheads

net of the impact of costs arising in Pounds
Sterling over the course of the trading period. As
well as exposure to Pounds Sterling on costs

Introduction

Key performance indicators

Income statement

Our full year results highlight the rapid growth
the Group has experienced in 2017, which
growth we expect to continue as our product
achieves wider adoption throughout the
telecommunications industry.

The admission of the Company's shares to
trading on AIM in London on 19 December 2017
was a transformational event, giving the Group
the opportunity to raise significant financial
resources and the capacity to expand its sales
team and customer reach, as well as bringing in-
house the Software Development Centre. New
funds raised at the time of the IPO were $5.1
mi l l ion (gross ) through the issue of
approximately 6.1 million new Ordinary Shares at
a placing price of 62.5 pence per share. In
consequence, the Group is now broadly owned
as to 29% by the wider investing community and
71% by the founders and current employees of
the Company.

As a result of the IPO and its associated costs, the
Group incurred a number of exceptional costs
during the year amounting to approximately
$701,000.

2017 continued the trends seen in the prior year,
with revenues rising around 160% to $3.15
million. Of this, some $2.42 million related to
license fees and associated revenue such as
change requests, a further $476,000 related to
Pelatro's share of the gain accrued by customers
using its software (“gain share”) and $255,000
related to the provision of hardware at the
special request of a customer.

Revenue

FINANCIAL REVIEW

2017 2016 Growth

Revenue $3.15m $1.21m 160%

Adjusted EBIDTA
(see Note 7)

$2.00m $498,000 302%

Profit before tax $1.10m $360,000 204%

Contracted
customers

7 3
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Amortisation (of development costs) increased
to $201,000 (2016: $138,000) due to further
additions to the value of the Group's
development costs plus the full year effect of the
previous year's capitalisation.

In the short to medium term it is anticipated that
cash spend on R&D and related expenses will
continue to rise reflecting the need to support
the expansion of the Group in revenue terms; it is
expected that development costs capitalised will
continue at or around the current proportion of
cash spend.

Pre-exceptional EBITDA (earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and
exceptional items) increased by 302% in the year
to $2.0 million (2016: $498,000). Profit before tax
and exceptional items was $1.80 million (2016:
$0.36 million). Profit before tax was $1.1 million
(2016: $0.36 million).

Excluding exceptional costs, adjusted earnings
per share were 8.9 cents (2016: 2.2 cents).

Profitability

Statement of financial position

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment

The goodwill in the Group balance sheet arises
from the acquisition of PSPL on 12 December
2017. As PSPL was initially loss-making and then
minimally profitable, and had been funded
largely by related party and third-party debt, it
had significant negative net assets at the time of
acquisition, thus leading to the goodwill
acquired.

Changes to other intangible assets includes the
addition of acquired software licenses at a fair
value of $16,000 and the capitalisation of
development costs of $752,000 (2016: $366,000)
and associated aggregate amortisation of
$202,000 (2016: $138,000). The Group's deferred
tax asset arose as a result of the acquisition of
PSPL, which has significant trading losses
brought forward to offset against future tax
liabilities.

The movement in property, plant and
equipment arises entirely from the acquisition of

foreign exchange movements in the Indian Rupee due to the software research, development and
support activities carried out by its Indian subsidiary, Pelatro Solutions Private Limited ("PSPL"). However,
given that PSPL was acquired only on 12 December, foreign exchange movements relating to this
subsidiary were minimal in 2017.

During the year, as in previous years, the Group has invested substantially in product research and
development and support through PSPL. This investment has contributed strongly to the growth in
revenues and it is anticipated that the cash cost of such investment will continue to increase. However, as
set out below, the accounting charge for costs relating to software development in the year decreased by
17% to $525,000 (2016: $632,000) due to a higher proportion of costs being capitalised as more resources
were given to product development which was applicable across our customer base. Cash costs were
approximately $1.28 million (2016: $1.00 million) representing a 28% increase.

Capitalised development expenditure in 2017 was $752,000, resulting in an intangible asset in the
statement of financial position of $908,000 (net of amortisation, 2016: $357,000).

Research and development costs

R&D  and related costs
2017

USD’000

2016

USD ‘000

Amount of R&D expensed in the year 525 632

Amortisation of previously capitalised development costs 201 138

Total R&D charge under IFRS 726 770

Total R&D cash expenditure 1,277 998

Amount of development costs capitalised 752 366
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PSPL as the Group has no tangible assets
elsewhere.

At 31 December 2017 trade receivables stood at
$1.78m (2016: $140,000). The increase relates
largely to the weighting of revenues in the
second half of the year, with over one third of the
total revenue billed in the last quarter. In
addition, certain contracts are by necessity
bespoke and under extended settlement terms.
Of these receivables, approximately $726,000
has been received since the year end and to date,
of which $350,000 relates to the $756,000 debtor
over 121 days referred to in Note 18 and the
balance relates to other customers.

At the year end trade payables stood at $53,000
(2016: $291,000). The decrease largely reflects
the acquisition of PSPL (previously the Group's
only significant trade creditor), with whom
trading balances are now intra-Group and hence
not shown in the consolidated Group Statement
of Financial Position. Other payables of $320,000
(2016: $40,000) comprise an accrued tax liability
of $201,000 and sundry creditors and accruals. A
further $101,000 (2016: $1,000) was owed to
Directors largely as a result of travel and other
expenses incurred by them on behalf of Group
companies for which reimbursement was
outstanding at the year end.

The Group has tax liabilities with UK,
Singaporean, US and Indian tax authorities in
relation to trading in 2017. Costs relating to the

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other payables

Current tax liabilities

IPO are not tax deductible, whether taken to
share premium or through the profit and loss
account, and hence have a concomitant effect
on tax arising in Pelatro Plc.

The Group's financial position was strong at 31
December 2017 with closing cash of $4.1m,
largely arising from the funds from the IPO net of
the receivables balance which built up during
the year, and around $1.0m of debt arising as a
result of the acquisition of PSPL, which
historically had been funded mostly by loans
from the founders as well as third party debt
(2016: $196,000 and no debt).

Operating cash flow excluding working capital
movements was mostly re-invested in product
development.

The Group does not have any contractual
obligation under any financial instruments with
respect to the hedging of interest rate or
currency risk.

Pelatro had a most encouraging year in 2017 and
has entered the new financial year with a robust
balance sheet to support our future expansion.

Statement of cash flows

Other matters

Summary

Cash flow, cash and borrowings

Financial instruments

Nic Hellyer
Finance Director

April 30,  2018
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The Strategic Report was approved by the Board
of Directors on 30 April, 2018.

On behalf of the Board

Subash Menon
Managing Director

April 30, 2018

Nic Hellyer
Finance Director

April 30, 2018

CONCLUSION
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SUBASH MENON
Co-Founder and Managing Director

Executive Directors

Sudeesh co-founded the
Group with Subash in 2013.
Sudeesh joined Subash at
Subex in 1993, where he
worked as a Sales Engineer.
There, he progressed to a
board Director and Chief
Operating Officer. Sudeesh
left Subex in 2012, by
which time it had grown to
be a global leader with
over 200 telco operators,
across more than 70
countries.

SUDEESH YEZHUVATH
Co-Founder and  Executive Director

Subash co-founded the Group in
April 2013. Prior to Pelatro, Subash
was the CEO and founder of Subex
Limited ("Subex"), a company he
transformed from a systems
integrator in telecoms hardware to
a global leader in Telco software for
business optimisation. Subash also
guided Subex through a successful
IPO in India (NSE and BSE) in 1999
and through seven acquisitions in
the UK, US and Canada, driving
revenues to in excess of US$100m,
prior to leaving Subex in 2012.

Nic is a Chartered Accountant
who brings a wealth of board
level experience from his 25 years
in investment banking. Nic spent
the majority of his banking career
at UBS and HSBC, advising on a
wide range of transactions
including public takeovers,
private M&A, IPOs and other
equity fund raisings. Nic has also
spent time in industry as CFO of
Buddi Limited and is currently a
partner at Opus Corporate
Finance.

NIC HELLYER
Finance Director

Non-Executive Directors

RICHARD DAY
Non Executive Chairman

Pieter is currently the Chairman and Co-
Founder of Viva Africa, an African
content aggregator and producer for
music and video, a role he has held since
February 2016. Prior to this, Pieter spent
sixteen years working in numerous
board level roles for various companies
within the telecommunicat ions
industry. These included Discover
Digital International, CoolMAIN, Telenor
International, Orange and MTN, at which
he worked across both Europe and
Africa.

PIETER CHRISTIAAN VERKADE
Non Executive Director

Board of Directors

Richard is a qualified solicitor with an abundance of
experience in the financial services industry. Richard co-
founded Arden Partners in 2002 and was instrumental in
launching their admission to AIM in 2006. Richard also
helped in taking Cogenpower to an AIM IPO in 2016, a
combined heat and power generating company of which
he was Non-Executive Director from 2015. In addition to
this, Richard is currently the CFO of AIM-quoted
iEnergizer. He is also on the board of EGS Energy as a non-
executive director and on the board of their special
purpose vehicle Eden Geothermal Limited which has
been formed to develop and operate their deep
geothermal site in Cornwall.
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The Company's shares are admitted to trading on
the AIM market of the London Stock Exchange
and hence the Company is subject to the AIM
Rules for Companies but is not required to
comply with the provisions of, or report in
accordance with, the UK Corporate Governance
Code (the "Governance Code") issued by the
Financial Reporting Council. The Board is
committed to good corporate governance and
seeks to follow, so far as is practicable, the
recommendations set out in the Corporate
Governance Code for Small and Mid-Sized
Companies published by the Quoted Companies
Alliance ("QCA Code") which itself adopts key
elements of the Governance Code, current policy
initiatives and other relevant guidance and then
applies these to the needs and particular
circumstances of small and mid-size quoted
companies on a public market.

The Board sets out its corporate governance
practices below. These practices were
developed to reflect good practice in corporate
governance for smaller quoted entities and
were selected having due regard for the
principles of the QCA Code.

The Board consists of five Directors including the
Chairman. The Board meets at least six times a
year and has full and timely access to all the
relevant information to enable it to carry out its
duties. The biographies appearing on page 20
demonstrate a range of experience and sufficient
calibre to bring independent judgement on
issues of strategy, performance, resources and
standards of conduct that are vital to the success
of the Group.

The Board is responsible to shareholders for the
proper management of the Group. A statement
of the Directors' responsibilities in respect of the
accounts is set out on page 23 and a statement of
going concern on page 25.

The Board monitors and reviews the Group's
p r o g r e s s t o w a r d s i t s g o a l s a n d t h e
implementation of its strategy, leaving the day-
to-day operations to the Executive Directors and
management. The Board has access to its
advisers and the Company Secretary to keep up
to date with corporate governance matters and
to ensure that relevant rules and regulations are
followed.

Board of Directors

Board Committees
The Board has delegated specific responsibilities
to the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees. The Board believes that all
members of each committee have the
appropriate experience without having conflicts
of interest.

The Audit Committee comprises Richard Day
(Chairman) and Pieter Verkade. It meets at least
twice a year and is responsible for ensuring that
the financial performance of the Group is
properly recorded and monitored on a regular
basis. This includes reviews of the annual and
interim accounts, results announcements,
internal control systems and procedures and
accounting policies. The Audit Committee has
respons ib i l i ty for recommending the
appointment of the external auditor. It will
review the cost effectiveness, independence,
and objectivity of the current auditors. During
the period Crowe Clark Whitehill LLP ("CCW")
were appointed as auditors for the Group. CCW
were also appointed as the Independent
Reporting Accountants for the purpose of
Admission.

The Remuneration Committee comprises
Richard Day (Chairman) and Pieter Verkade. It
meets at least twice a year and is responsible for
determining the Group's policy on the
remuneration of the executive Directors. It is also
responsible for making any recommendations
for the introduction of share options schemes
and long-term incentive plans for the executive
Directors.

Audit Committee

Remuneration Committee

Nomination Committee

The remuneration policy for executive
Directors and senior employees is to ensure that
they are rewarded competitively and in line with
their individual performance. Full details of the
remuneration packages of individual directors
are set out in note 10 to the financial statements
and in the Directors' Report. The remuneration of
non-executive Directors is fixed by the Board as a
whole.

The nomination committee is responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of
the Board and identifying and nominating, for
the approval of Board, candidates to fill vacancies
on the Board as and when they arise. It meets at
least twice a year and comprises Pieter Verkade
(Chairman) and Richard Day.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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The Board is satisfied that the current level of
internal control meets the current needs of the
Group in maintaining risk exposure to an
acceptable level, although such a system can
only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The Board recognises that, as the Group
develops, internal controls should be reviewed
and where necessary enhanced to ensure the risk
exposure does not exceed the Board's risk
appetite.

The Group has in place a defined policy and
operates zero tolerance towards bribery.

Communications with shareholders are given
high priority and the Group provides up to date
information to its shareholders through market
announcements and copies of all results and
announcements are available online at

There is regular dialogue with institutional
and other major shareholders including
p r e s e n t a t i o n s a f t e r t h e C o m p a n y ' s
announcement of final and interim results.

The Board also uses the Annual General Meeting
to communicate with private and institutional
investors and welcomes their participation.
Shareholders receive at least 21 days' notice of
the Annual General Meeting which represents an
important opportunity for shareholders to meet
with the Board of Directors. The Chairman meets
and communicates with shareholders as
requested and the Board also uses the
Company's broker and informal discussions after
the Annual General Meeting, to maintain open
routes of communication with shareholders.

Anti-bribery

Relations with shareholders

www.pelatro.com

Internal control
The Board is responsible for ensuring there is an
adequate system of internal control and
reviewing its effectiveness, such internal controls
including controls over financial, operations and
compliance risk factors. The key procedures
established to effect these controls are as follows:

Responsibility levels, the ethos of the
Group, the delegation of authority and
other control procedures, together with
appropriate accounting policies, are
communicated throughout the Group

The Group appoints experienced and
professional staff of the necessary calibre,
both through promotion and recruitment,
to fulfil their responsibilities. The Group
believes in equal opportunities and
people's development and the Group
policy is to appoint staff entirely on the
basis of merit, and fully in accordance with
local legislation

The Group maintains an annual budget
process. The Board sets budgets once per
year and monitors actual performance
against those budgets at every Board
meeting. The Board also reviews forecasts
and expectations in the light of up-to-date
circumstances and takes action as
appropriate

The Audit Committee considers significant
control matters. Management letter points
raised by the external auditors are
discussed by the Audit Committee and are
dealt with as appropriate

The Group maintains an expenditure
approval process that ensures that the
Board approves major expenditure and
investments

The Board undertakes a review of internal
controls annually

�

�

�

�

�

�
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approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group
and of the profit or loss of the Group for that
period.

In preparing these financial statements, the
Directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;

make judgements and accounting estimates
that are reasonable and prudent;

state whether applicable accounting
standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in
the financial statements; and

prepare the financial statements on the going
concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Company will continue in
business

�

�

�

�

The Directors are responsible for keeping
adequate accounting records that are sufficient
to show and explain the Company's transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other
rregularities. They are further responsible fori

The Directors present their annual report on the
affairs of the Group, together with the
consolidated financial statements and
independent auditor's report, for the year ended
31 December 2017.

The Pelatro Group was established with the
objective of offering specialised, enterprise class
B2C multi-channel campaign management
software for precision marketing campaigns.
Pelatro's precision marketing solution, mViva,
uses "Big Data" analytics to process and analyse
end user data to reveal patterns, trends,
associations and key behavioural traits.

The focus of the business to date has been on the
telco vertical market which has been undergoing
a series of challenges, including market maturity,
saturation and customer churn. In addition, there
are increased customer demands and higher
expectations of Telcos' offering at lower price
points. Pelatro's innovative solution to these
problems is based on the fundamental premise
that Telcos need to move away from a "one size
fits all" approach and address each individual
subscriber with products and offerings that are
contextual, relevant and personalised.

Today, Pelatro's solution is applied to more than
150 million end users globally and has been
deployed in seven telcos including Robi Axiata,
Smart Dialog, Bahamas Telecom and Inwi with
one further implementation scheduled.

Further information on the Group's activities, its
prospects and likely future developments is
given in the sections titled "Precision Marketing
in the telecommunications industry", "Strategic
Report" and "Financial Statements".

The Directors are responsible for preparing the
Directors' Report and the financial statements for
each financial year in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law the Directors have elected to
prepare the financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and applicable law.
Under company law the Directors must not

Principal activities

Directors' responsibilities

DIRECTORS' REPORT
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ensuring that the Report of the Directors and
other information included in the Annual Report
and Financial Statements is prepared in
accordance with applicable law in the United
Kingdom.

The maintenance and integrity of the Pelatro Plc
web site, which includes compliance with AIM
Rule 26, is the responsibility of the Directors; the
work carried out by the auditor does not involve
the consideration of these matters and,
accordingly, the auditor accepts no responsibility
for any changes that may have occurred in the
accounts since they were initially presented on
the website.

Information about the use of financial

instruments by the Company and its subsidiaries

and the Group's financial risk management

policies are given in note 23 of the financial

statements.

Website publication

Financial instruments and liquidity risks

Directors and their interests

The Directors who served during the year are as
shown below:

The Directors at 31 December 2017 and their
beneficial interests in the share capital of the
Company were as follows:

No changes took place in the beneficial interests

of the Directors between 31 December 2017 and

30 April 2018.

and the range during

the year was 62.5p to

The market price of the Ordinary Shares at 31

December 2017 was 65.5p

65.5p.

1.

2

held by his sons Varun Menon - 4,842,122 Ordinary Shares
and Kiran Menon - 4,842,122 Ordinary Shares. 40,000 shares
held by his wife, Dr Fawzia Ali.

In accordance with the Company's articles all of
the Directors retire by rotation at the Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Name of Director

31 December 2017

Number of Ordinary

Shares of 2.5p each

Subash Menon1 9,684,244

Sudeesh Yezhuvath 3,309,309

Nic Hellyer2 80,000

Richard Day 19,457

Pieter Verkade -

Director Start Date

Subash Menon April 04, 2017

Sudeesh Yezhuvath April 04, 2017

Nic Hellyer July 31, 2017

Richard Day April 04, 2017

Pieter Verkade October 22, 2017
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Substantial shareholdings

As at 30 April, 2018, the Company had received notification of the following significant interests in the
ordinary share capital of the Company:

Corporate governance

Internal control

The Company has formalised the following
matters by Board resolution:

A formal schedule of Board responsibilities;

The procedure for Directors to take
independent professional advice if necessary,
at the Company's expense;

The procedure for the nomination and
appointment of non-executive Directors, for
specified periods and without automatic re-
appointment; and

Establishment of and written terms of reference
for an audit, nominations and remuneration
committees.

Identification and evaluation of business risks
and control objectives - particularly through a

�

�

�

�

�

The Board has overall responsibility for ensuring
that the Group maintains a system of internal
control to provide its members with reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial
information used within the business and for
publication, and that assets are safeguarded.
There are inherent limitations in any system of
internal control and accordingly even the most
effective system can provide only reasonable,
and not absolute, assurance with respect to the
preparation of accurate financial information
and the safeguarding of assets.

The key features of the internal control system

that operated throughout the year are described

under the following headings:

� Control environment - particularly the
definition of the organisation structure and the
appropriate delegation of responsibility to
operational management

formal process of consideration and
documentation of risks and controls which is
periodically undertaken by the Board.

�

�

Main control procedures, which include the
setting of annual and longer-term budgets
and the monthly reporting of performance
against them, agreed treasury management
and physical security procedures, formal
capital expenditure and investment appraisal
approval procedures and the definition of
authorisation limits (both financial and
otherwise).

Monitoring, particularly through the regular
review of performance against budgets and
the progress of development and sales
undertaken by the Board.

The Board reviews the operation and
effectiveness of this framework on a regular basis.
The Directors consider that there have been no
weaknesses in internal controls that have
resulted in any losses, contingencies or
uncertainties requiring disclosures in the
financial statements.

The Group's business activities, together with the
factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position are set out in the
Strategic Report on pages 4 to 19 and the
financial position of the Group, its cash flows,
liquidity position and borrowing facilities are
described in the notes to the financial
statements, in particular in the consolidated cash
flow statement on page 34, in Note 20 "Loans
and borrowings" and Note 23 "Financial
instruments".

Going concern

Name of Holder
Number of Ordinary

Shares

Percentage of Issued

Share Capital

Herald Investment Management Ltd 1,600,000 6.6%

Artemis Fund Management Limited 1,200,000 4.9%

Rathbones Investment Management Limited 1,089,828 4.5%

Maven Capital Partners UK LLP 800,000 3.3%
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The financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis. Overall, the Directors are
of the view that the Group has adequate
financing to be able to meet its financial
obligations for a period of at least 12 months
from the date of approval of this annual report
and financial statements.

There have been no significant events which
have occurred subsequent to the reporting date.

Details of the group's activities on research and
development during the year are set out in the
Financial Review.

�

Events after the balance sheet date

Research and development

Auditor

Each of the persons who are Directors of the
Company at the date when this report was
approved confirms that:

So far as the Director is aware, there is no
relevant audit information (as defined in the
Companies Act 2006) of which the Company's
auditor is unaware; and

By order of the Board

Company Secretary
49 Queen Victoria Street

London EC4N 4SA

April 30, 2018

Nic Hellyer

� The Director has taken all steps that he ought
to have taken as a Director to make himself
aware of any relevant audit information (as
defined in the Companies Act 2006) and to
establish that the Company's auditor is aware
of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be
interpreted in accordance with the provisions of
s418 of the Companies Act 2006.

The Directors will place a resolution before the
Annual General Meeting to appoint Crowe Clark
Whitehill LLP as auditor for the following year.

As permitted by section 233 of the Companies
Act 2006, the Company has purchased insurance
cover for the Directors against liabilities that
might arise in relation to the Group.

Liability insurance for Company officers
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Opinion

Basis for opinion

We have audited the financial statements of
Pelatro Plc (the “Parent Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2017, which comprise:

�

�

�

�

�

the Group statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2017;

the Group and Parent Company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2017;

the Group and Parent Company statements of
cash flows for the year then ended;

the Group and Parent Company statements of
changes in equity for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in the preparation of the financial
statements is applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union.

the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of the Group's and of the
Parent Company's affairs as at 31 December
2017 and of the Group's profit for the period
then ended;

the Group financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union;

the Parent Company financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union as
applied in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006; and

the financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we

In our opinion:

�

�

�

�

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following matters in relation to which ISAs (UK)
require us to report to you when:

The Directors' use of the going concern basis
of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is not appropriate; or
The Directors have not disclosed in the
financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
about the Group's or the Parent Company's
ability to continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting for a period of at least
twelve months from the date when the
financial statements are authorised for issue

Based on our professional judgement, we
determined overall materiality for the Group
financial statements as a whole to be $90,000,

�

�

In planning and performing our audit we applied
the concept of materiality. An item is considered

expected to
change the economic decisions of a user of the
financial statements. We used the concept of
materiality to both focus our testing and to
evaluate the impact of misstatements identified.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Overview of our audit approach

Materiality

material if it could reasonably

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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based on 8% of normalised group profit before
tax.

We use a different level of materiality
("performance materiality") to determine the
extent of our testing for the audit of the financial
statements. Performance materiality is set based
on the audit materiality as adjusted for the
judgements made as to the entity risk and our
evaluation of the specific risk of each audit area
having regard to the internal control
environment.

Where considered appropriate performance
materiality may be reduced to a lower level, such
as, for related party transactions and directors'
remuneration.

We agreed with the Audit Committee to report
to it all identified errors in excess of £4,500. Errors
below that threshold would also be reported to it
if, in our opinion as auditor, disclosure was
required on qualitative grounds.

Whilst the Parent Company's activity and
accounting is in the United Kingdom, the main
activity of the Group is accounted for from its
operating location in India.

In establishing our overall approach to the Group
audit, we determined the type of work that
needed to be undertaken at each of the
components by us, as the primary audit
engagement team. For the full scope
components in America, Singapore and India
where the finance functions were carried out in
India, work was performed by a local audit team

Overview of the scope of our audit

in India. We determined the appropriate level of
involvement to enable us to determine that
sufficient audit evidence had been obtained as a
basis for our opinion on the Group as a whole. We
discussed the risks of material misstatement with
the subcontracting auditor.

The primary team led by the Senior Statutory
Auditor was ultimately responsible for the scope
and direction of the audit process. The primary
team interacted regularly with the local team
where appropriate during various stages of the
audit, reviewed relevant working papers and
were responsible for the scope and direction of
the audit process. This, together with the
additional procedures performed at Group level,
gave us appropriate evidence for our opinion on
the Group financial statements.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the
most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that
we identified. These matters included those
which had the greatest effect on: the overall
audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the
audit; and directing the efforts of the
engagement team. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

This is not a complete list of all risks identified by
our audit.

Key audit matters
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The Group's operating revenue arises
from mViva products and amounted to
$3.15 million for the year ended 31
December 2017.

The Group's agreements comprise two
main elements, subscription based
contract revenue and activity based
revenue. The revenue recognition for
these elements is sometimes different to
the timing of cash flows received and is
recognised in the accounting period in
which the services are rendered, as per the
Group's accounting policy in Note 3 to the
financial statements.
Revenue is a key measure of the financial
performance of the Group, and in our view
is of particular interest to the users of the
financial statements in assessing the
performance of the Group.

We obtained an understanding of the mViva agreements and
evaluated the Group's processes and controls in place to calculate
the amount and timing of subscription and activity based revenue
transactions.

We performed the following audit procedures on a sample basis,
for both existing and new contracts, to assess the appropriateness
of revenue recognition for individual transactions
assessed the appropriateness of the allocation of various revenue
elements with reference to the terms of the contract;
ensured revenue recognised from monthly subscription fees was
supported by signed contracts;
assessed the existence of debtors through testing to contracts,
cash received where applicable and a review of credit notes issued
after year-end;
assessed that revenue was recognised in the correct period,
agreeing back to supporting documentation the contract price
and the period in which the services were delivered.

We also analysed manual journals to identify any non-standard
entries, testing identified journals to supporting evidence to ensure
that the revenue was appropriately recognised and recorded in the
correct period.

�

�

�

�

�

As disclosed in note 16, the Group has
capitalised $0.75 million of development
costs relating to the development of the
mViva product.

We have focussed on this because
research and development represents a
significant part of this business and
judgement is required in determining the
appropriate accounting treatment.

The Directors use judgement to
determine whether research and
development costs should be expensed
or whether they meet the criteria for
capitalisation. This criteria includes
assessing whether the product being
developed is commercially feasible,
whether the Group has adequate
technical, financial and other required
resources to complete the development
and whether the costs will be fully
recovered through future sale or licensing
of the product. The Directors determined
that the development costs meet the
criteria for capitalisation.

The capitalisation of intangibles is
included within note 4 as an area of critical
accounting estimate and judgement. The
accounting policy for intangibles is
outlined in note 3.

We obtained an understanding of the processes and controls over
the recognition of research and development expenses.

We have evaluated the appropriateness of the capitalisation of the
development expenditure by:

discussing with management and reviewing all project plans to
obtain an understanding of the nature of the projects. We
performed an assessment of the projects against the IAS 38
criteria including how they are used in the business, the stage of
development, technical feasibility and the likelihood of the
software being successfully completed and used to generate
revenue;
testing the allocation of overhead costs to capitalised
development costs for mathematical accuracy and
reasonableness and agreeing underlying data to headcount
information; and
on a sample basis, we tested the amounts allocated to
development costs to underlying payroll records and invoices.

�

�

�

Key audit matter

Revenue recognition

How the scope of our audit addressed the key audit matter

Capitalisation of development costs
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Other information

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the

Companies Act 2006

The Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report,
other than the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material
incons i s tenc ies or apparent mater ia l
misstatements, we are required to determine
whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements or a material misstatement
of the other information. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

In our opinion based on the work undertaken in
the course of our audit:

the information given in the strategic report
and the Directors' report for the financial year
for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial
statements; and

�

�

�

�

�

�

the Directors' report and strategic report have
been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of
the Group and the Parent Company and their
environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified material misstatements in
the strategic report or the Directors' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following matters where the Companies Act
2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

adequate accounting records have not been
kept by the Parent Company, or returns
adequate for our audit have n o t b e e n
received from branches not visited by us; or

the Parent Company financial statements are
not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns; or

certain disclosures of Directors' remuneration
specified by law are not made; or

we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit.

Matters on which we are required to report by

exception

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial

statements

As explained more fully in the Directors'
responsibilities statement set out on page 23,
the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view, and for such

Group reconstruction

Our audit procedures in relation to these matters were designed in the context of our audit opinion as a
whole. They were not designed to enable us to express an opinion on these matters individually and we
express no such opinion.

The acquisition of Pelatro LLC has a
significant impact on the form and
presentat ion of these f inanc ia l
statements. We considered the risk that
the accounting treatment adopted was
incorrect and did not fairly present the
substance of the transaction. individually
and we express no such opinion.

As the acquisition was not a business combination management
were responsible for selecting an appropriate accounting policy.
We reviewed this policy, the adequacy of the disclosure and the
accounting entries. In doing this we agreed key items back to
supporting documentation

Key audit matter How the scope of our audit addressed the key audit matter
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internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the
Group's and Parent Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
group or the Parent Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Our
objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists .
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the

financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable

Matthew Stallabrass (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of

Statutory Auditor
London

April 30, 2018

Crowe Clark Whitehill LLP

A further description of our responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements is located on
the Financial Reporting Council's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of our auditor's report.

This report is made solely to the Company's
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the Company's members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company
and the Company's members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Use of our report
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For the year ended 31st December 2017

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The accompanying notes 1 to 27 are an integral part of the financial statements.

Note

2017

USD'000

(audited)

2016

USD'000

(unaudited

pro forma)

Revenue 5 3,146 1,205

Cost of sales (799) (632)

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

Gross Profit 2,347 573

Adjusted administrative expenses 6 (546) (213)

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

Adjusted operating profit 1,801 360

Exceptional items 7 (701) -

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

Operating profit 1,100 360

Finance expenses (4) -

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

Profit before taxation 1,096 360

Income tax expense 11 (252) -

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 844 360

Discontinued oeprations

Loss for the year from discontinued operations 12 - (49)

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 844 311

Attributable to:

Owners of the Pelatro Group 830 314

Non-controlling interests (14) (3)

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

844 311

Other comprehensive income/(expense):

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (2) (19)

which may subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or

Gain on bargain purchase of minority interest 14 -

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

Net other comprehensive income 12 (19)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 856 292

Attrbutable to:

Owners of the Pelatro Group 842 297

Non-controlling interests 14 (5)

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

856 292

Earnings per share

Attributable to the owners of the Pelatro Group (basic and 13 4.8c 1.9c

From continuing operations (basic and diluted) 13 4.8c 2.2c
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The financial statements of Pelatro Plc, registered number 10630166, were approved by the board of
Directors and authorised for issue on 30 April 2018. They were signed on its behalf by:

Subash Menon (Managing Director) Nic Hellyer (Finance Director)

The accompanying notes 1 to 27 are an integral part of the financial statements.

For the year ended 31st December 2017

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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Note

2017

USD'000

(audited)

2016

USD'000

(unaudited

pro forma)

Assets

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 16 1,211 357

Property, plant and equipment 17 30 -

Deferred tax asset 113 -

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

1,354 357

Current assets

Trade receivable 18 1,778 157

Other assets 217 -

Cash and cash equivalents 4,126 196

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

6,121 353

Total assets 7,475 710

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Borrowing 20 266 -

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

266 -

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 19 474 331

Short term borrowings 20 774 -

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

1,248 331

Total liabilities 1,514 331

NET ASSETS 5,961 379

Issued share capital and reserves attributable to owners

of the parent

Share capital 21 801 551

Share premium 21 4,472 -

Other reserves 21 (529) (531)

Retained earnings 1,217 359

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

TOTAL EQUITY 5,961 379



For the year ended 31st December 2017

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH  FLOW

2017

USD'000

(audited)

2016

USD'000

(unaudited

pro forma)

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit for the year 844 311

Adjustments for:

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 247 -

Finance costs 4 -

Depreciation of tangible non-curren assets 1 11

Amortisation of intangible non-current assets 202 138

Provision for deferred taxes 5 -

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 1,303 460

(Increase) / decrease in trade and other receivables (1,698) 59

(Increase) / decrease in trade and other payables 440 (72)

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

Cash generated from operating activities 45 447

Income tax paid (78) -
----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

Net cash generated from operating activities (33) 447

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (1) (2)

Development of intangibles (752) (366)

Increase in loans to members of Pelatro LLC - (17)

Cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiaries net of cash acquired 9

Net cash and cash equivalents divested with subsidiary - (16)

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

Net cash used in investing activities (744) (401)

Cash flows from financing activities

Issue of ordinary shares, net of issue costs 4,742 -

Amounts advanced by related parties 2 -

Repayments to related parties (9) -

Repayment of loans from members of Pelatro LLC 17 -

Proceeds from borrowings 2 54

Repayment of borrowings (47) -

Finance costs (4) -

Less interest accrued but not paid 4 -

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

Net cash generated by (used in) financing acivities 4,707 54

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,930 100

Net foreign exchange differences - (23)

Cash and equivalent at beginning of peried 196 119

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 4,126 196 A
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Reserve Description and purpose

Share capital Nominal value of issued shares

Share premium Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value less associated costs

Merger reserve Amounts arising on the elimination of the members' capital in Pelatro LLC and its s
ubsidiary on presentation of the Group results under merger accounting principles

Exchange reserve The difference arising on the translation of the assets and liabilities of
overseas subsidiary companies into the presentational currency of the Group

Retained earnings All other net gains and losses not recognised elsewhere

The accompanying notes 1 to 27 are an integral part of these financial statements.

For the year ended 31st December 2017

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share

capital

Share

premium
Exchange

reserve

Merger

reserve

Retained

profitts

Atributable

to owners of the

pelatro Group

Non

controlling

interests

Total

equity

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Pro Forma Balance at

1 January 2016 551 - 17 (531) 45 82 (53) 29

Profit after taxation for

the financial year - - - - 314 314 (3) 311

Exchange differences reclassified

to profit or loss on disposal of

foreign operations - - (17) - - (17) (2) (19)

Non-controlling interest

lost on disposal of subsidiary - - - - - - 58 58

--------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------- --------

Pro Forma Balance at - -

31 December 2016 551 - - (531) 359 379 - 379

Profit after taxation for the year - - - 830 830 14 844

Other comprehensive income:

Exchange difference on

translation of overseas subsidiaries - (2) - (2) - (2)

Bargain purchase of non-

controlling interest in subsidiary 14 14 - 14

Non-controlling interest

lost on acquisition of

minority interest insubsidiary - 14 14 (14) -
Transactions with owners

Reserves arising on reconstruction (20) - - 4 - (16) - (16)

Shares issued by Pelatro Plc

for cash 270 4,901 - - - 5,171 - 5,171

Issue costs - (429) (429) - (429)

----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- ----------- --------- --------

Balance at 31 December 2017 801 4,472 (2) (527) 1,217 5,961 - 5,961
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1 General information

Pelatro Plc (“Pelatro” or the “Company”) is a
public limited company incorporated and
domiciled in the UK. The Company's ordinary
shares are traded on AIM. These financial
statements are the consolidated financial
statements of Pelatro Plc and its subsidiaries (“the
Pelatro Group” or the “Group”) and the company
financial statements for Pelatro Plc (“the
Company”) and are the first financial statements
presented for the Company. The financial
statements are presented in US dollars as the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Group operates.

Pelatro's registered office is at 49 Queen Victoria

Street, London EC4N 4SA and its principal place

of business is at No. 403, 7th A Main, 1st Block,

HRBR Layout, Bangalore 560043, India

New standards and amendments to existing
standards that have been published and are
mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2017 have been adopted
but had no significant impact on the Group and
Company. New standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations which have been
issued but are not yet effective (and in some
cases had not been adopted by the EU) for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2018 have not
been adopted early in preparing these financial
statements. The main accounting standards
which may be relevant to the Group are set out
below:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39. The
standard is effective for the Group's financial
statements for the period beginning on 1
January 2018 and will impact the classification
and measurement of financial instruments and
will require certain additional disclosures. Whilst
an assessment of the new standard is ongoing,
the changes to recognition and measurement of
financial instruments and changes to hedge
accounting rules are not currently considered
likely to have any major impact on the Group's
current accounting treatment or hedging
activities due to the simple nature of the Group's
financial instruments.

2 Adoption of new and revised standards

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (effective for 2018
financial report)

The standard also requires entities to use an
expected credit loss model for impairment of
financial assets instead of an incurred credit loss
model. This could be expected to impact the way
the Group provides for bad and doubtful
receivables; however, the current expectation is
that it is unlikely to have a material impact on the
overall level of provisions due to the credit
worthiness of the Group's customers and
procedures and processes carried out before
billings. There Is no expectation for restatement
of any 2017 comparatives within the 2018
Financial Statements.

FRS 15 is effective for the Group from the year
ending 31 December 2018 and includes revised
requirements for the classification and
measurement of revenue from contracts with
customers. Key changes to accounting
requirements under IFRS 15 which may be
relevant to Pelatro include new requirements in
measuring and recognising licencing revenues.
To understand the potential effect of the
adoption of IFRS 15, it is necessary to understand
the various contractual relationships which the
Pelatro Group may have with its customers as
follows:

Pelatro's contracts to date have provided for
licenses of software that are run from servers on
the customer's premises (i.e. on-premise
software) and hardware. Pelatro also provides, as

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers" (effective for 2018 financial report)

Contract types and obligations

I

For the year ended 31st December 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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part of the license contract, installation services,
updates to licensed software that are transferred
on a when-and-if-available basis, bug fixes and
support (i.e. post-contract customer support or
“PCS”). Implementation services are usually
separate performance obligations as the
customer can benefit from Pelatro's software on
its own, or together with readily available
resources, because the customer has the ability
to obtain the implementation services from
another vendor; furthermore, the promise to
deliver the license is separately identifiable from
the promise to provide implementation.

Either during implementation or after the
product goes live, customisation may be
provided, as required. Thus, while the software
provided by Pelatro can be used on an "as is"
basis, some customers require customisation.

As customer subscriber numbers form the basis
for the license fee, an additional license fee may
be levied as and when the product is required to
handle a number of subscribers greater than that
considered for the original license fee.
Furthermore, certain licenses relate to the
incremental revenue generated by use of
Pelatro's software ("gain share" contracts).

Post the warranty period, the product is
supported for as long as it is in use with the
customer. This is part of the original contract but
carries a separate annual maintenance fee.

To date, revenue for perpetual license sales has
been recognised on a basis which the Board
considers to be broadly compatible with the

Payment terms and other costs

Potential effects of IFRS 15

Contracts are usually structured such that
payments are due on a milestone basis closely
linked to the stage of implementation of the
software concerned, which ultimately provides a
right to use Pelatro's IP. Pelatro may incur costs,
such as setup costs, to fulfil its obligations under a
contract once it is obtained, but before
transferring goods or services to the customer.
Furthermore, Pelatro may also pay commissions
(typically between 10 and 15% of the license
value) to third party intermediaries who have
materially assisted in gaining the contract
concerned.

requirements of IFRS 15 as Pelatro typically has
(1) an identifiable contract, (2) containing
identifiable performance obligations, (3) a readily
determinable transaction price and (4) a rational
basis on which to allocate such purchase price. In
terms of customisation, Pelatro believes that the
promise to deliver the customised software is
del ivered over t ime (as the required
customisation is performed) and thus should be
recognized over time using an appropriate
measure of progress. Whilst it is in the nature of
Pelatro's business to agree contracts on a
bespoke basis, we expect that future contracts
will be broadly similar in scope to those agreed
historically.

The Group intends to provide support services
through maintenance contracts for which
performance obligations are completed over
time. Revenue on these contracts will be
recognised over that period. For revenue
generated from the rendering of other services, if
any, Pelatro will continue to recognise revenue
upon completion of the work once the
performance obligations have been met.

Setup costs and commissions are likely to be
deemed incremental costs to obtain a contract
under IFRS 15 and as such may need to be
capitalised as an asset. However, in the case of
commissions, the Board's initial view is that the
amortisation profile of any asset so created
would be likely to follow closely the actual
payments of the commissions in which case the
impact on the profit and loss account of the
Group would be immaterial. In the case of setup
costs, the Board's initial assessment is that a
portion of such costs is likely to be addressed, at
least in part, by other accounting standards
(notably IAS 38 "Intangible assets)" and thus
likewise impact on the profit and loss account of
the Group would be limited.

The accounting treatment for gain share
contracts is unlikely to be affected as they are
similar to sales-based royalty arrangements and
hence revenue will be recognised as sales occur.

apply IFRS 15 retrospectively in the initial period
of application). To do so, the Group will have to

Conclusion

The Group intends to apply the requirements of
IFRS on the "modified retrospective" basis (i.e. to

(continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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recognise the cumulative effect of initially
applying IFRS 15 as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings at the date
of initial application but only to contracts that are
not completed contracts as at 1 January 2018.
However, given the stage of implementation for
those contracts which were open at this date, the
effect is expected to be negligible.

The Board will continue to consider the
application of IFRS 15 as the nature of the Group's
contracts evolve and further guidance and
precedents on the application of the standard
become available. However, the Board's initial
assessment is that the impact of IFRS 15 is likely to
be limited, although, for example, in the case of
an additional fee becoming payable as a result of
an increase in subscriber numbers, some
reallocation of the combined license fees may be
appropriate.

IFRS 16 (effective for the year ending 31
December 2019), which supersedes IAS 17
“Leases” and related interpretations, will require
all leases to be recognised on the balance sheet,
eliminating the distinction between operating
and finance leases. This IFRS will thus require the
Group to recognise any operating leases as both
an asset and a rental commitment in its
consolidated statement of financial position.
Pelatro does not intend to apply the standard
retrospectively and so any difference between
the carrying value of the asset created and the
corresponding liability will be applied as an
adjustment to opening equity at the date of
initial application. Any such adjustment is not
expected to be material.

IFRS 16 “Leases” (effective for 2019 financial
report)

Summary

Basis of accounting

The implications of these accounting standards
on the Group are expected to be evaluated
further during 2018.

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union.

3 Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

Group reconstruction

The Company controls an investee if, and only if,
the Company has the following:

Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights
that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee);
Exposure of rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and
The ability to use its power over the investee
to affect its returns.

Other than as disclosed above in respect of those
entities which became part of the Group as a
result of the Reconstruction, the results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the
accounting policies used into line with those
used by the Group. All intra-group transactions,
balances, income and expenses are eliminated
on consolidation.

�

�

�

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31
December each year. Under Indian company law,
PSPL has a statutory year end of 31 March,
however, for the purposes of consolidation,
financial statements have been prepared for
PSPL as at 31 December 2017 on the same
accounting principles as for the rest of the Group.

Pelatro Plc was incorporated on 21 February
2017. On 7 September 2017 Pelatro Plc acquired
Pelatro LLC in exchange for the issue of shares in
Pelatro Plc. At the same time, the 98% of the
share capital in Pelatro Pte Limited (“Pelatro Pte”)
that was held by Pelatro LLC, as well as the 2%
owned by third parties as a minority interest, was
purchased by Pelatro Plc. As a result of this group
reconstruction (the “Reconstruction”), the
members of Pelatro LLC received shares in the
Company in direct proportion to their original
membership interest in Pelatro LLC, and Pelatro
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Plc became the direct owner of 100% of the share
capital of Pelatro Pte.

In determining the appropriate accounting
treatment for the Reconstruction, the Directors
considered IFRS 3 - Business Combinations
(Revised 2008) (“IFRS 3”). However, they
concluded that the Reconstruction fell outside
the scope of IFRS 3 as it represented a
combination of entities already under common
control. In accordance with IAS 8 - Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors, in developing an appropriate accounting
pol icy, the Di rectors cons idered the
pronouncements of other standard setting
bodies and specifically looked to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United
Kingdom (“UK GAAP”) for guidance, and in
particular the merger accounting provisions of
FRS 102 section 19 “Business Combinations and
Goodwill”, which does not conflict with IFRS and
reflects the economic substance of the
transaction.

Under merger accounting principles, the assets
and liabilities of both entities are recorded at
book value, not fair value. Intangible assets and
contingent liabilities are recognised only to the
extent that they were recognised by the legal
acquirer in accordance within applicable IFRS, no
goodwill is recognised, any expenses of the
combination are written off immediately to the
income statement and comparative amounts, if
applicable, are restated as if the combination had
taken place at the beginning of the earliest
accounting period presented. Accordingly,
although the Reconstruction did not become
effective until 7 September 2017, the
consolidated financial statements for 2017 have
been presented as if the current Group structure
at this date had always been in place.

On 12 December 2017, Pelatro Plc acquired the
whole of the issued share capital of Pelatro
Solutions Private Limited (“PSPL”). This
acquisition has been accounted for as a normal
business combination under IFRS 3.

In accordance with the exemptions given by
section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the
Company has not presented its own Statement
of Comprehensive Income.

Comparative financial information

Basis of preparation – going concern

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition of subsidiaries over the fair value of
net assets acquired. Goodwill is initially
recognised as an asset at cost and is
subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment.

The 2016 comparative information represents
the consolidated results of the Pelatro LLC group
which, for the period from 1 July 2015 to 1 August
2016, included PSPL (which ownership was
accounted for as a discontinued operation), and
which was thus prior to the acquisition of Pelatro
LLC by Pelatro Plc. A statutory audit opinion on
this comparative information has not been (and
will not be) issued as there was previously no
requirement for an audit. However, the
information is extracted from the admission
document of the Company dated 13 December
2017 which was issued in connection with the
admission of the Company's Ordinary Shares to
trading on AIM and which contained an
accountants' report on this information as
required by paragraph 20.1 of Annex 1 of the
Prospectus Directive Regulation as applied by
part (a) of Schedule Two to the AIM Rules for
Companies, which was given for the purposes of
complying with the AIM Rules and for no other
purpose.

Furthermore, given the application of merger
accounting above, the unaudited 2016
statements are pro forma in nature.

These financial statements have been prepared
on the going concern basis. The Directors have
reviewed the Company's and the Group's going
concern position taking account of its current
business activities, budgeted performance and
the factors likely to affect its future development,
set out in the Annual report, and include the
Group's objectives, policies and processes for
managing its capital , its financial risk
management objectives and its exposure to
credit and liquidity risks. Following such review,
the Directors are of the view that the Group has
adequate financing to be able to meet its
financial obligations for a period of at least 12
months from the date of approval of the annual
report and financial statements
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For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to the cash-generating units
expected to benefit from the combination. Cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated are tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently when there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on
the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment is recognised
immediately in the income statement and is not
subsequently reversed.

The gain on a bargain purchase is recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income in the
period of the acquisition.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts receivable for goods and
services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales-
related taxes.

Each element of revenue (described below) is
recognised only when:
(i) Provision of the services has occurred;
(ii) The consideration receivable is fixed or

determinable; and
(iii) Collection of the amount due from the

customer is reasonably assured.

License revenue is recognised based on
milestones linked to specific deliverables across
multiple phases of the project, or, if contractually
linked to the incremental revenue derived by
that customer from use of the license, based on a
pre-agreed share of the incremental revenue
which is calculated, agreed and recognised at the
end of each month.

In the case of hardware sales, revenue is
recognised when goods are delivered and title
has passed.

Cost of sales includes direct costs relating to
software supply and maintenance and the

Cost of sales

acquisition cost of hardware resold to end
customers.

Rentals payable under operating leases are
charged to income on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group's foreign operations are translated at
exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date. Income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period where
it approximates the rates on the dates of the
underlying transactions. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are classified as equity and
transferred to the Group's translation reserve

Leasing

Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each
Group company are prepared in the currency of
the primary economic environment in which it
operates (its functional currency). For the
purpose of the consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of
each Group company are expressed in US
Dollars, which is the functional currency of the
Company and the presentation currency for the
consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the
individual companies, transactions in currencies
other than the entity's functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date,
monetary assets and liabilities that are
denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, are included in profit or loss
for the period except for differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity. For such non-monetary items,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
also recognised directly in equity.

.
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Borrowing costs

Taxation

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Any tax payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the income statement because it
excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability

is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is
charged or credited in the income statement,
except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Group
intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost
of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
the location and condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss (unless it
is included in the carrying amount of another
asset) on a straight-line basis to write off the
depreciable amount of the assets net of the
estimated residual values over their estimated
useful lives of between 3 and 5 years.

Property, plant and equipment

Internally-generated intangible assets -
development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Development expenditure, where it meets
certain criteria (given below), is capitalised and
amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful
life. Asset lives are subject to regular review and
an impairment exercise carried out at least once a
year. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is written-off in the period in which
it is incurred.

An asset is recognised only if all of the following
conditions are met:

The product is technically feasible and
marketable;
The company has adequate resources to
complete the development of the product;
It is probable that the asset created will
generate future economic benefits; and

�

�

�
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� The development cost of the asset can be
measured reliably.

Development expenditure is amortised on a
straight-line basis over 4 years, such amortisation
being charged to profit or loss.

The timing of revenue recognition, invoicing and
cash collections results in both invoiced

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
excluding goodwill

Trade receivables

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate
cash flows that are independent from other
assets, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. An intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life is tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication
that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. If the
recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense through profit and
loss.

Trade receivables are measured at initial
recognition at fair value and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
rate method. Appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised
in the income statement when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired. The
allowance recognised is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the effective rate computed
at initial recognition.

accounts receivable and uninvoiced receivables.
In accordance with the revenue recognition
policy stated above, revenue may be recognised
(depending on the contract with the end
customer) according to usage or upon
achievement of contractual milestones.
Generally, invoicing occurs subsequent to
revenue recognition, resulting in contract assets
arising until invoicing.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of a past event, and
it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at
the Directors' best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date and are discounted to present value
where the effect is material.

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Borrowings

Trade payables

Provisions

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and other short-
term highly liquid investments with an original
maturity date of fewer than three months that
are readily convertible to a known amount of
cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into. An
equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Interest-bearing loans are recorded initially at fair
value, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges,
including premiums payable on settlement or
redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted
for on an accruals basis in profit or loss using the
effective interest rate method and are added to
the carrying amount of the instrument to the
extent that they are not settled in the period in
which they arise.

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value,
and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method.
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Segmental information

Exceptional items

Capitalised development costs

For management purposes, the Group's
activities are principally related to the provision
of data analytics services to customers, and all
other activities performed by the Pelatro Group
are solely to support its primary revenue
generation activities. All the processes are
primarily subject to the same risks and returns
and the Directors therefore consider that there
are no identifiable business segments that are
subject to risks and returns different to the core
business. As such, internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker ("CODM",
which has been determined to be the Board of
Directors) for making decisions about resource
allocations and performance assessment relates
to the consolidated operating results of the
Pelatro Group.

Accordingly, the Directors have determined that
there is only one reportable segment under IFRS
8 and the financial information therefore
presents entity-wide information. The results and
assets for this segment can be determined by
reference to the statement of comprehensive
income and statement of financial position.

The Pelatro Group primarily serves customers in
Africa, Asia and the Caribbean.

Exceptional items are disclosed separately in the
financial statements where it is necessary to do
so to provide further understanding of the
financial performance of the Company or the
Group. They are material items of income or
expense that have been shown separately due to
the significance of their nature or amount.

The key assumptions and critical accounting
judgements concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are discussed below:

Development costs are accounted for in
accordance with IAS 38 Intangible Assets, and
costs that meet the qualifying criteria are

4 Critical accounting judgements and key

sources of estimation uncertainty

capitalised and systematically amortised over the
useful economic life of the intangible asset.
Determining whether development costs qualify
for capitalisation as intangible assets requires
judgement, including assessments of the nature
of the work underlying the costs carried out by
relevant employees, estimates of the technical
and commercial viability of the asset created, and
its applicable useful economic life. These
estimates are continually reviewed and updated
based on past experience and reviews of
competitor products available in the market.

Judgement is required in estimating whether
there will be sufficient taxable profits arising in
future period to recognise a deferred tax asset
based on taxable losses carried forward or other
timing differences. Management also needs to
make estimates about the expected timing of
reversal of the deductible and taxable temporary
differences when considering whether a
deferred tax asset can be recognised.

Given that the currently recognised deferred tax
asset (as disclosed in Note 11) arises solely in the
Group's Indian subsidiary PSPL whose profit is
determined by intra-Group recharges on a "cost
plus" basis, the Board is confident that sufficient
taxable profits will be generated to utilise tax
losses brought forward, and hence have
concluded that the carrying value of the deferred
tax asset is appropriate.

The Group recognises revenue in four
geographical regions based on the location of
customers, as set out in the following table:

Deferred tax

Revenue by geography

Management makes no allocation of costs, assets
or liabilities between these segments since all
trading activities are operated as a single
business unit.

5 Segmental analysis
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At 31 December
2017

USD’000
2016

USD’000

Caribbean 331 548

North Africa 756 27

South & South
East Asia

1,904 630

Sub-Saharan
Africa

155 -

3,146 1,205
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Revenue by type

Customer concentration

The Group's revenue is analysed between the sale of licenses to use mViva software, associated
maintenance and support, and the resale of hardware to host the software, as set out in the following
table:

Management makes no allocation of costs, assets or liabilities between these segments since all trading
activities are operated as a single business unit.

The Group has six customers representing individually over 10% each and in aggregate approximately
95% of revenue at $2,991,000 (2016: two customers representing individually over 10% each and in
aggregate approximately 98% of revenue at $1,178,000). The six customers accounted for revenue of
$756,000, $628,000, $586,000, $350,000, $340,000 and $331,000 respectively (2016: $630,000 and
$548,000).

Revenue attributable to these six customers was all attributable to license fees, support and
maintenance, other than the customer accounting for $756,000, of which $501,000 related to license fees
and $255,000 to the resale of hardware.

Non-current assets

Information about the Group's non-current assets by location of assets are as follows:

Non-current assets comprise intangible assets, goodwill, deferred tax assets and plant, property and
equipment. During the year, the Group's IP was transferred from Pelatro LLC in the US to Pelatro Pte in
Singapore.
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At 31 December
2017

USD'000

2016

USD'000

License fees 2,891 1,205

Resale of hardware 255 -
----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

3,146 1,205

At 31 December
2017

USD'000

2016

USD'000

US - 357

Singapore 908 -

UK 287 -

India 159 -

----------------------------------- -----------------------------------

1,354 357
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6 Operating expenses

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:

7 Non-GAAP profit measures and exceptional items

Reconciliation of operating profit to earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation
and amortisation (“EBITDA”)

Exceptional items comprise financial advisory, legal, accounting and other costs relating to the
admission to trading of the Company's shares in December, the associated placing of new Ordinary
shares, and the Group reconstruction and acquisition of PSPL carried out to facilitate this.

Exceptional items are treated as exceptional by reason of their size or nature and are excluded from the
calculation of adjusted EBITDA and adjusted earnings per ordinary share to allow a better understanding
of comparable year-on-year trading and thereby an assessment of the underlying trends in the Group's
financial performance. These measures also provide consistency with the Group's internal management
reporting.

The calculation of adjusted earnings per share is shown in Note 13.
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At 31 December
2017

USD'000

2016

USD'000

Staff costs (see note 9) 14 -

Amortisation of intangible non-current asset 202 138

Depreciation of tangible non-current assets 1 -

Research costs expensed 525 632

Auditor’s remuneration (see note 8) 124 -

Operating lease charges - land and building 6 -

Foreign exchange (gain) / loss (15)

Included in profit/ (loss) for the year

from discontinued operations:

Depreciation of tangible non-current assets - 11

At 31 December
2017

USD'000

2016

USD'000

Operating profit 1,100 360

Adjusted for:

Amortisation and depreciation 203 138

Exceptional items within operating expenses 701 -

----------- -----------

Adjusted EBITDA 2,004 498
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8 Auditor's remuneration

The financial statements for the year to 31 December 2016 were not audited and accordingly no related
expense was incurred.

9 Staff costs

The average number of persons employed by the Company during the period was:
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2017

USD'000

2016

USD'000

Charged in the financial Year:

Audit of financial statements of Pelatro Plc - -

Amounts receivable by auditor in respect of:

Audit of financial statements of subsidiaries pursuant to legislation - -

Tax compliance 3 -

Advisory work in respect of IPO 119 -

Other advisory work 2

----------- -----------

124 -

To be charged respect of audit servlces relating to the financial year:

Audit of the financial statements of Pelatro Plc 41 -

Audit of financial statements of  subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 3

Tax compliance 4

Accountancy work 3

---------- ----------

51

2017

USD’000

2016

USD’000

Wages and salaries 60 -

Social security contributions 2 -

Benefits - -

Less: amounts capitalised (48)

---------- ----------

14 -

2017 2016

Sales 2 Nil

Software development 42 Nil

Marketing 1

Administation 11 Nil

---------- ----------

56 Nil



10  Directors' remuneration and transactions

The Directors' emoluments in the year ended 31 December 2017 were:

The remuneration of the Executive Directors is decided by the Remuneration Committee.

Save as disclosed above and in note 25 no Director had a material interest in any contract of significance
with the Group in either year.

11 Taxation

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Pelatro LLC is a US LLC and, for the period from its incorporation to 7 September 2017 was treated as a
flow-through entity for both US federal and state income tax purposes. As such, its then members were
taxed on their distributable share of the profits of the business, and Pelatro LLC itself was not subject to US
federal or state income tax. Hence no provision or liability (including deferred tax) for federal or state
income taxes relating to Pelatro LLC is included in the tax charge for these periods and accordingly no tax
charge arose in the Group accounts for the period when Pelatro LLC was the sole constituent of the
Group (including all of 2016).

From 8 September 2017 Pelatro LLC elected to be taxed as a C Corporation and hence tax arising at the
corporate level within Pelatro LLC will be accounted for accordingly in the consolidated tax expense and
liability.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had an undiscounted deferred tax asset of $113,000 (2016: $nil). The
asset comprises principally short-term timing differences in PSPL. Deferred tax assets have been
measured at an effective rate of 31% in India.
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Basic salary

2017

$’000

Benefits in

kind 2017

$’000

Total

2017

$’000

Total

2016

$’000

Executlve Directors

Subash Menon (appointed 4 April 2017) 78.0 - 78.0 -

Sudeesh Yezhuvath (appointed 4 April 2017) 78.0 - 78.0 -

Nic Hellyer (appointed 31 July 2017) 32.6 - 32.6 -

Non-Executive Directors

Richard Day (appointed 4 April 2017) 52.9 - 52.9 5.2

Pieter Verkade (appointed 22 October 2017) 6.7 - 6.7 -

248.2 248.2 5.2

2017

USD’000

2016

USD’000

Current tax

UK corporation tax charge / (credit) at 19 % - -

Overseas corporation tax charge / (credit) 247 -

----------- -----------
Total current income tax 247

Deferred tax

Reversal of deferred tax asset 5 -

----------- -----------
Total deferred income tax 5 -

Total income tax expense recognised in he year 252 -
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Reconciliation of the total tax charge

The tax expense in the income statement for the year is higher than the standard rate of corporation tax
in the UK of 19%. A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to the profit before taxation at the
statutory tax rate to income tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

The tax effect of exchange differences recorded within the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
is nil (2016: nil).

At 31 December 2017, there was no recognised deferred tax liability (2016: $nil) for taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group's subsidiaries as the Group has determined
that undistributed profits of its subsidiaries will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

The temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries for which deferred tax liability has
not been recognised aggregate to $nil (2016: $nil).

Temporary differences associated with Group investments

Deferred tax
Recognised deferred tax
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2017

USD'000

2016

USD'000

Profit before taxation 1,108 311

Tax at the applicable rate of 19% 211 60

Tax effects of:

Effect of tax chargeable to underlying members 4 (60)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 176 -

Income not taxable (154) -

Tax exemptions and rebates (29) -

Foreign tax credits 6 -
Higher rates on overseas taxation (10) -

Overseas withholding tax expenses 48 -

--------- ----------

Income tax expense 252 -

2017

USD'000

2016

USD'000

At 1 January - -

Movement in the period:

- acquired on acquisition of subsidiary undertaking 118 -

- other timing differences (5) -

--------- ---------

At 31 December 113 -

Comprising:

Temporary differences (7) -
Tax losses 120 -

--------- ----------

Future tax rates 113 -
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Reconciliation of the total tax charge

The tax expense in the income statement for the year is higher than the standard rate of corporation tax in
the UK of 19%. A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to the profit before taxation at the
statutory tax rate to income tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:



13  Earnings

Reported earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) amounts are calculated by dividing net profit or loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year (such calculation having been adjusted to reflect the issue of ordinary shares by the
Company for the acquisition of Pelatro LLC as if these shares had been issued on incorporation of Pelatro
LLC). A calculation of diluted earnings per share is not applicable as there were no dilutive potential
shares outstanding at the end of the reporting periods.

In respect of figures for the year ended 31 December 2016, as equity capital was represented by
members' interests and not ordinary shares, the pro forma earnings per share calculation has been
included based on the relevant number of shares in the Company following the group reorganisation
but prior to the issue of shares to raise new funds on admission to AIM.

Future tax rates

Factors affecting future tax charges

The Finance Bill 2015, which was substantively enacted on 26 October 2015, announced reductions to
the then main rate of corporation tax of 20%, reducing it to 19% from 1 April 2017. The Finance Act 2016,
which was approved on 15 September 2016, will reduce the rate by a further 2% to 17% from 1 April 2020
(superseding the 18% rate effective from that date introduced in Finance (No.2) Act 2015).

The Group's recognised and unrecognised deferred tax assets in its Indian subsidiary have been shown
31%, being the substantively enacted rates in that country.

The Group has carried forward tax losses in India of $387,000 against which a deferred tax asset of
$120,000 is recognised. These losses expire between 2022 and 2024.

The loss attributable to discontinued operations relates to the Group's prior period of ownership of PSPL
and is analysed as follows:

12 Loss attributable to discontinued operations
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2017

USD'000

2016

USD'000

Revenue - 154

Expenses - (203)

-------- --------

Loss before tax - (49)

Income tax expense - -

--------- ---------

Loss after tax attributable to discontinued operations - (49)

Loss per share attributable to discontinued operations - 0.3c
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The following reflects the earnings and share data used in the basic earnings per share computations:

14 Dividends paid and proposed

15 Principal Group investments

No dividends were declared or paid during the year and no dividends will be proposed for approval at
the AGM (2016: none).

The Company has investments in the following subsidiary undertakings, which contribute to the net

assets of the Group:

(continued)
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2017

USD'000

2016

USD'000

Profit attributable to equity to equity holders of the parent:

Continuing operations 830 360

Discontinued operations - (46)

------------ ------------
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent for

basic earnings 830 314

Weighted number of ordinary shares in issue 17,273,968 16,211,040

Basic earnings per share attributable to shareholders 4.8c 1.9c
Basic earnings per share for continuing operations

attributable to shareholders 4.8c 2.2c

Adjusted earnings per share

Adjusted earnings per share is calculated as follows:

2017

USD'000

2016

USD'000

Statutory earnings attributable to owners to owners of the Parent 830 314

Adjusting items:

- Loss from discontinued operations - 46

- exceptional items 701 -

----------- ----------

Adjusted earnings attributable to owners of the Parent 1,531 360

Weighted number of ordinary shares in issue 17,273,968 16,211,040

Adjusted earning per share attributable to shareholders 8.9c 2.2c

Pribcipal subdiary

undertakings

Country

incorporation

and operation

Registered

office

Principal

activity

Description and

proportion of

shares held by the

company

Pelatro LLC USA
110 Summit Avenue
Montvale, Nj07645,

USA

Sale 100% of members’
capital

Pelatro Pte Limited Singapore
One Raffles Place,
#10-62, Tower 2,

Singapore-048616

Ownership of
intellectual

property

100% ordinary
shares

Pelatro Solutions
Private Limited

India
403, 7th Amain

HRBR Layout
Bangalore 560043

Research,
development
and support

100% ordinary
shares

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 2
0

1
7

3350



16 Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise capitalised development costs, acquired software and goodwill.

(continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Development costs

Development costs are either internally
generated or acquired and are capitalised at cost.
Such costs predominantly comprise capitalised
staff costs (and allocable related costs) associated
with the development of new products and
services which will be saleable to more than one
customer.

These intangible assets have been assessed as
having a finite life and are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their useful life, which is
estimated at four years. The amortisation charge
on intangible assets is included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. These assets are tested

USD’000

Development

costs

USD’000

Software

USD’000

Goodwill

USD’000

Total

Cost

At 1 January 2017 538 - - 538

Additions 752 - - 752

Created as part of a business combination - - 287 287

Acquired as part of a business combination - 32 - 32

---------- -------- ---------- -------

At 31 December 2017 1,290 32 287 1,609

Amortisation or impairment

At 1 January 2017 (181) - - (181)

Acquired as part of a business combination - (15) - (15)

Charge for the year (201) (1) - (202)

---------- -------- ---------- -------

At 31 December 2017 (382) (16) - (398)

Net carrying amount at December 2017 908 16 287 1,211

At 1 January 2017 357 - - 357

USD’000

Development

costs

USD’000

Software

USD’000

Goodwill

USD’000

Total

Cost

At 1 January 2017 173 - - 173

Additions 365 - - 365

-------- ------- -------- -------

At 31 December 2016 538 - - 538

Amortisation or impairment

At 1 January 2016 (43) - - (43)

Charge for the year (138) - - (138)

-------- -------- -------- -------

At 31 December 2016 (181) - - (181)

Net carrying amount at 31 December 2016 357 - - 357

At 1 January 2016 130 - - 130
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(continued)
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for impairment when an indicator of impairment
arises and annually prior to them being made
available for use.

Software assets represent purchased licences
and distribution rights for third party software
and is capitalised at cost and amortised on a
straight-line basis over the relevant estimated
useful life. The estimated useful life of these
intangible assets ranges between three and nine
years depending on their nature. Amortisation
charges in respect of intangible assets are
included in administrative expenses.

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation
carried out shortly prior to purchase by a third-
party expert valuer. To calculate this, cash flow
projections are based on management's
financial projections for 5 years. The discount rate
applied to cash flow projections is 12.5% and
cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using a 5% growth rate which is
considered to be a prudent approximation to the
long-term average growth rate for the region in
which the CGU operates.

Key assumptions are made by management
based on past experience taking into account
external sources of information around gross
margins, growth rates and discount rates for
similar businesses.

The calculation of value in use is most sensitive to
assumptions around:

operating cash flows, based on financial

Software

�

Goodwill

PSPL cash-generating unit

Key assumptions used in the value-in-use
calculations

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of PSPL. It is
assessed as having an indefinite life and is
assessed for impairment at least annually.
G o o d w i l l a c q u i r e d t h r o u g h b u s i n e s s
combinations has been allocated to one
individual cash-generating unit (“CGU”), the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal management purposes, for impairment
testing.

budgets for 2018 approved by the CGU's
management;
growth rates, based on internally estimated
growth rates for the market and the business
offerings; and
the discount rate, based on the pre-tax
weighted average cost of capital of the CGU.

A change in a key assumption in respect to
operating cash flows could cause the carrying
value of the goodwill to exceed the recoverable
amount, resulting in an impairment charge. The
Board is confident that the assumptions in
respect of operating cash flows remain
appropriate. Where the operating cash flows
incorporate products or solutions that will be
sold in an existing known market, past
experience is used as a guide to the level of sales
achievable, growth rates and associated
margins. Where the operating cash flows relate
to products or solutions that will be sold into a
new or emerging market, past experience with
similar products or solutions is combined with
relevant information from external market
sources, such as competitor pricing and
discussions with potential customers, in arriving
at the level of sales achievable, growth rates and
associated margins.

In assessing any potential indicator of
impairment, the Directors have also considered
and assessed the following evidence:

(a) As at 31 December 2017, the market
capitalisation of the Group was $21.5million
based on the quoted share price of the
Company of 65.5p per Ordinary Share; and

(b) During the year, the Company raised new
equity finance of $5.1million at 62.5p per
Ordinary Share;

The Directors have concluded that, based on the
above, recoverable value exceeds the carrying
value of the goodwill at 31 December 2017.

An analysis of the Group's deferred tax asset is
given in Note 11.

�

�

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

Deferred tax asset
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17  Tangible assets

18  Trade and other receivables

All tangible assets were acquired as a result of the acquisition of PSPL on 12 December 2017; accordingly,
it is not relevant to present comparative information for 2016.

“Other receivables” in 2016 represents amounts due from the then members of Pelatro LLC. No
allowance for doubtful debts was recognised in 2017 or 2016.

(continued)
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USD’000

Computer

equipment

USD’000

office

equipment

USD’000

Total

Cost

At 1 January 2017 - - -

Additions - 1 1

Acquired as part of a business combination 56 3 59

-------- ---------- ---------

At 31 December 2017 56 4 60

Depreciation

At 1 January 2017 - -

Acquired as part of a business combination (28) (1) (29)

Charge for the year (1) - (1)

---------- ---------- ----------

At 31 December 2017 (29) (1) (30)

Net carrying amount

At 31 December 2017 27 3 30

At 1 January 2017 - - -

2017

USD'000

2016

USD'000

Due within a year

Trade receivables 1,778 140

Other receivables 195 17

Prepayments 22 -

----------- -----------
Total trade and other receivables 1,995 157
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Analysis of trade receivables

The Group allows an average debtor's payment period of 90 days after invoice date. Interest is not
typically charged on overdue debts although it is provided for in some contracts. It is the Group's policy to
assess debtors for recoverability on an individual basis and to make provision where it is considered
necessary. In assessing recoverability, the Group takes into account any indicators of impairment up until
the reporting date; however, given the bespoke nature of the Group's contract, the often continuing
relationship and the credit status of the customers concerned, no impairment has been deemed
necessary. No debtors' balances have been renegotiated during the year or in the prior year.

The average credit period taken for trade purchases is between 30 and 60 days. For most suppliers no
interest is charged on the trade payables for the first 30 days from the date of the invoice. The Group has
financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the apppropriate
credit time frame. The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to
their fair value.

Other payables principally comprise provisions for taxation liabilities and other costs.

(continued)
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19  Trade and other payables

2017

USD'000

2016

USD'000

Due within a year

Trade payables 53 291

Other payables 320 40

Amounts due to related parties 101 -

----------- -----------
Total trade and other payables 474 331

Carrying

amount

Neither

impaired

or past

due

Past due but not impaired

61-90

days

91-120

days

More than 121

days

USD’000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’000

2017

Trade receivables 1,778 1,022 - - 756

2016

Trade receivables 140 129 - 11 -
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(continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20  Loans and borrowings

The non-current secured term loan is primarily secured on the personal property of a director of the
Company. The loan is repayable in 120 equal monthly instalments of INR 278,255 ($4,359) with an implied
interest rate of 12.5%.

Unsecured current borrowings comprise loans from Directors of the Company of $428,000 (at nil interest
cost) and an overdraft facility ($316,000) from a commercial bank (which carries an interest rate of 10.5%).

Reconciliation between opening and closing balances for liabilities resulting in financing cash flows

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of borrowings approximates to their fair value.

2017

USD'000

2016

USD'000

Non-current liabilities

Secured term loan 266 -

----------- ----------

266 -

Current liabilities

Current portion of term loan 30 -

Unsecured borrowing 744 -

---------- ----------

774 -

Total loans and borrowings 1,040 -

1 January

2017
Non-cash

changes-

acquisition

Non-cash

changes-

foreign

exchange

movements

Non-cash

Interest

accruals

included in

operating

cash flow

Cash flows-net

(repayments)

and

draw downs

31

Dec. 2017

USD’000 USD’000 USD’000 USD’000

Non-Current liabilities

Secured term loan - 262 2 2 - 266

Current liabilities

Current portion of
Secured term loan

- 30 - - - 30

Bank overdraft - 357 4 2 (47) 316

Directors’ loans - 431 4 - (7) 428

---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ---------- ----------

Total - 1,080 10 4 (54) 1,040
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21  Share capital and reserves
Share capital and share premium

The Company was incorporated on 21 February
2017 with 100 Ordinary shares of £1 each in issue.
A further 49,900 shares were issued on 31 July. On
7 September these shares were split on the basis
of 39 new shares for every old share such that
there were then 2,000,000 Ordinary shares of 2.5
pence each in issue. Also on 7 September,
16,211,040 shares of 2.5 pence each were issued
in connection with the acquisition of Pelatro LLC.

On 19 December 2017 the Company's shares
were admitted to trading on the AIM market of
the London Stock Exchange (the “Admission”). In
conjunction with Admission, the Company
made an initial public offering ("IPO") of
6,102,212 new 2.5 pence ordinary shares at a
price of 62.5 pence per ordinary share.

The Company incurred incremental costs
totalling $1,129,000 in respect of its admission to
trading on AIM and the associated issue of new
shares. IAS 32 "Financial Instruments:
Presentation" requires the costs of issuing new
shares to be charged against the share premium
account. Management has reviewed the
incremental costs to identify those solely
incurred in issuing new shares, those incurred in
connection with the entire share capital, and
those not associated with issuing new shares.

Those costs incurred in connection with the
entire share capital have been apportioned to
the issue of new shares by reference to the
number of new shares compared to the entire

share capital. As a consequence, costs relating
directly to the new issue of shares in connection
with the IPO, plus attributable IPO costs allocated
between the share premium account and profit
and loss account in proportion to the number of
primary and secondary shares admitted to
trading on Admission, resulted in a debit of
$428,000 against share premium and a charge of
the remaining $701,000 to administrative
expenses.

The translat ion reserve comprises al l
foreignexchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations.

As noted in Note 3, the acquisition by Pelatro Plc
of Pelatro LLC on 7 September has been
accounted for as a reverse asset acquisition.
Consequently, the previously recognised book
values and assets and liabilities were retained
and the consolidated financial information for
the period from the date of acquisition has been
presented as a continuation of the Pelatro
business which was previously wholly owned by
Pelatro LLC. The difference between the nominal
value of the shares issued pursuant to the above
share arrangement and the nominal value of the
Pelatro LLC capital at the time of the acquisition
has been transferred to the merger reserve,
together with certain other items relating to
investments in subsidiaries.

Translation reserve

Merger reserve
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Ordinary shares of 2.5 p each (issued and fully paid)
2017

USD'000

2017

Number

At January 2017 - -

Issued for cash during the year 270

Issued in exchange for shares during the year 531

--------- ---------

801 24,313,252

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 2
0

1
7

3356



22  Operating leases

The total future value of minimum lease payments is due as follows:

PSPL entered into a five year lease in November 2014 for its premises at 1st Block, HRBR Layout, Bangalore,
India. The Company entered into a short-term lease in September 2017 for its premises at Queen Victoria
Street, London, UK. PSPL was not part of the Group at 31 December 2016 and hence no comparative is
presented.

IFRS 16 “Leases” (effective for the year ending 31 December 2019), which supersedes IAS 17 “Leases” and
related interpretations, will require all leases to be recognised on the balance sheet, eliminating the
distinction between operating and finance leases. The Group has one operating lease arrangement
which would require recognition under IFRS 16 and will consider the financial impact of IFRS 16 in due
course. In broad terms, if adopted as at 31 December 2017, the impact would be to recognise lease
liabilities of approximately $153,000 and corresponding assets relating to the right to use the properties
which is the subject of the current leases.

The Company does not intend to apply the standard retrospectively and so any difference between the
carrying value of the assets created and the corresponding liabilities will be applied as an adjustment to
opening equity at the date of initial application

The Group's principal financial instruments are cash, trade receivables, borrowings and trade payables.

The Group therefore has exposure to certain risks from its use of financial instruments unrelated to the

performance of the Group itself. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's

financial performance. Risk management is carried out by the Directors.

The Group's activities expose it to certain financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, as
explained below.

Market risk is the risk of loss that may arise from changes in market factors such as interest rates and
foreign currency movements

Credit risk is the financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to financial instruments fails to
meet a contractual obligation. Credit risk arises from the Group's cash and cash equivalents and
receivables balances. Cash is held predominantly with ICICI, an institution with a Baa1 credit rating, and
Kotak Mahindra Bank, which has an A-3 (short term) and BBB (long term) credit rating. Given the stage
of development of the Group, over the period under review it has contracted with a relatively small
number of customers and hence trade receivables are concentrated amongst those customers. The
credit quality of customers is assessed by taking into account their financial position, past experience
and other factors, and the Group minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with those customers who
it believes have a high credit rating

Financial risk management

�

�

23 Financial instruments
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2017

USD'000

2016

USD’000

Not later than one year 97 -

Later than one year and not later than five years 62 -

Later than five years - -

--------- ---------

159 -
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� Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
This risk relates to the Group's liquidity risk management and implies maintaining sufficient cash
and/or committed borrowing facilities. The Directors monitor rolling forecasts of liquidity, cash and
cash equivalents based on expected cash flows

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. The objective when managing
capital is to maintain adequate financial flexibility to preserve the ability to meet financial obligations,
both current and long term. The Group is funded by both debt and equity and the resulting capital
structure is managed and adjusted to reflect changes in economic conditions and with a view to
maximising the return to shareholders through optimisation of the balance of debt and equity.
Financing decisions are made based on forecasts of the expected timing and level of capital and
operating expenditure required to meet commitments and development plans.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes borrowings as disclosed in note 20,
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued
capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in the Group statement of changes in equity on page
35. There was no change in the Group's approach to capital management during the financial period
under review.

Classification of financial instruments

All trade receivables are due from customers outside the UK.
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Group

2017

$'000

Group

2016

$’000

Financial assets

Cash 4,126 196

----------- -----------

Trade receivables 1,778 140

----------- -----------

Financial liabilities

Other payables and accruals 220 40

----------- -----------

Trade payables 53 291

----------- -----------

Current liabilities 201 -

----------- -----------

Short-term borrowings 266 -

Long-term borrowings 774 -

----------- -----------
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Foreign currency risk management and sensitivity analysis

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies. Hence, exposures to

exchange rate fluctuations arise. The Group is mainly exposed to the currencies of the UK, (Great British

Pounds), the US (US dollars) and India (Indian Rupees or INR), with a modest exposure to the currency of

Singapore (Singapore Dollars or SGD). The Group also has exposure to certain amounts in Emirati

Dirhams (AED) which currency is pegged to the US Dollar. Foreign currency risk is monitored closely on

an ongoing basis to ensure that the net exposure is at an acceptable level.

The following table shows the denomination of the year end cash, cash equivalents and borrowings, and

trade receivables and payables balances:

Comparative information is not presented for 2016 as, at that balance sheet date, the Pelatro Group had
no material exposures to any currencies other than USD.

Had the foreign exchange rate between the US dollar and the other Group currencies changed by 5%,
this would have affected the profit for the year and the net assets of the Group by $151,000.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk arising from such of

its borrowings which are not fixed rate in nature, details of which are set out in note 20. The sensitivity

analysis below has therefore been determined based on the exposure to floating rate liabilities. The

analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liabilities outstanding at the balance sheet date was

outstanding for the whole year. A 1.0% increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk

internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably

possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1.0% higher and all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit for the

year ended 31 December 2017 would have decreased by $2,000 (2016: nil).

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has increased during the current year due to the increase in the

amount of its short- and long-term borrowings arising from the acquisition of PSPL.

Interest rate risk management and sensitivity analysis

Liquidity risk management and interest risk tables

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group's short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves and borrowing facilities and by continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows.
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USD’000 GBP’000 SGD’000 AED’000 INR’000

Cash and cash equivalents 48 2,606 61 - 32,437

Trade receivables 2,237 - - 533 -

Borrowings - - - - (66,379)

Trade payables (38) (7) (6) - -

--------- --------- --------- --------- ---------

Net currency exposure 2,247 2,599 55 533 (33,942)
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The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

The related party borrowings have no formal terms and are hence treated as repayable on demand.

There are no material differences between the fair value and the book value of the Group's financial

assets and liabilities.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

(continued)
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24 Business combinations

On 12 December 2017 the Group completed the acquisition of Pelatro Solutions Private Limited (“PSPL”),
the company with which the Group has an agreement for software development, implementation and
support.

The amounts recognised in respect of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are set out in
the table below.

Weighted

average

effective

interest rate

Less than

1 year

USD’000

2-5

years

USD’000

More than

5 years

USD’000

Total

USD’000

Non-interest bearing liabilities nil 421 - - 421

Variable interest rate

Instruments-borrowings 10.5% 316 - - 316

Fixed rate instruments
-borrowings 12.5% 30 105 161 296

Related party borrowings nil 428 - - 428

------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------

Total 1,195 105 161 1,461

Book value

USD’000

Adjustment

USD’000

Fair value

USD’000

Property, plant and equipment 31 - 31

Intangible assets 16 - 16

Deferred tax asset - 118 118

Trade and other receivables 802 - 802

Cash and bank balances 11 - 11

Long -term borrowings (272) - (272)

Trade and other payables (117) (33) (150)

Short term borrowings (808) - (808)

_____ _____ _____

Net identifiable assets and liabilities (337) 85 (252)

Goodwill on acquisition 287

_____

Consideration payable in cash 35

Analysis of cash flows on acquisition

Net cash acquired with subsidiary 11

Cash paid _____

Net cash inflow 11
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The goodwill recognised above is attributable to intangible assets from PSPL that cannot be individually
separated and reliably measured due to their nature. These items include the expected value of synergies
and assembled workforce.

From the date of acquisition, PSPL contributed $nil of revenue to the Group (as all revenue arising is inter-
company) and operating losses of $123,000. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of the
year, contributed revenue would have been $nil and operating losses would have been $1,324,000.

The cash consideration for PSPL of $34,644 was paid to the former shareholders of PSPL in January 2018.

(continued)
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25 Related party transactions

Amounts outstanding at the end of the year in respect of transactions with related parties were as

follows:

Details of unsecured loan transactions with key management personnel are as follows:

The Directors are deemed to be the only key management personnel.

In addition to the balance shown as "cash at bank" at 31 December 2017 ($4,126,000), for reasons of
expediency the Company received into its account in December 2017 cash of approximately $1,045,000
representing the net proceeds of Ordinary shares in the Company sold on behalf of a relative of a Director
of the Company. This sum was held on bare trust by the Company, effectively as nominee of the party in
whose name the cash was held. Of this sum, approximately $161,000 was repaid before the year end, and
the balance repaid shortly after the year end. The balance of $884,000 from these funds held in the
Company's bank account at 31 December was not an asset of the Company and hence is not recognised
as such in the Group or Company accounts; likewise the associated cash flows are not reflected in these
financial statements

Other than disclosed in this note or elsewhere in this financial information as appropriate, no related
party transactions have taken place during the year that have materially affected the financial position or
performance of the Group.

Amount outstanding - (debtor)/ creditor
2017

USD'000

2016

USD’000

Key management personnel - net loans outstanding 428 -

Key management personnel - outstanding reimbursements in respect
incurred on behalf of Group companies 101 1

Related party and nature of transaction
2017

USD'000

2016

USD’000

Outstanding at the beginning of the year - -

Acquired as part of a business combination 431 -

Loan taken during the year 2 -

Loan repaid during the year (9) -

Foreign exchange movements 4 -

---------- ----------

Loans outstanding at the end of the year 428 -
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26

27 Events after the balance sheet date

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2017 the Group had no material capital commitments (2016: nil) nor any contingent
liabilities (2016: nil).

The loans from certain Directors to the Group's subsidiary PSPL, as disclosed in Note 25, were repaid in full

in January 2018. Other than this, there have been no significant events which have occurred subsequent

to the reporting date.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The Company was incorporated on 21 February 2017, accordingly there is no comparative financial

information for the financial year 2016. For the period ended 31 December 2017, the Company recorded

a retained loss of $393,000.

The financial statements of Pelatro Plc, registered number 10630166, were approved by the board of
Directors and authorised for issue on 30 April 2018. They were signed on its behalf by:

Subash Menon Nic Hellyer

(Managing Director) (Finance Director)

The accompanying notes 1 to 11 are an integral part of these financial statements.

For the year ended 31st December 2017

Note
2017

USD’000

Assets

Non-current assets

Investments in subsidiaries 6 654

----------
654

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 7 1,108

Cash and cash equivalents 3,524

----------
4,632

Total assets 5,286

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 8 406

----------
Total liabilities 406

NET ASSETS 4,880

Issued share capital and reserves attributable to owners of the patent

Share capital 9 801

Share premium 9 4,472

Retained earnings 9 (393)

----------

TOTAL EQUITY 4,880
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The accompanying notes 1 to 11 are an integral part of these financial statements.

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31st December 2017

Share capital

$’000

Share

premium

$’000

Retained

profits

$’000

Total equity

$’000

Balance at 21 February 2017 - - - -

Profit after taxation for the year

Transactions with owners: - - (393) (393)

Shares issued by Pelatro Plc in

exchange for Pelatro Llc shares 531 - - 531

Shares issued by Pelatro Plc for cash 270 4,901 - 5,171

Issue costs - (429) - (429)

----------- ----------- ----------- -----------

Balance at 31 December 2017 801 4,472 (393) 4,880

Reserve Description and purpose

Share capital Nominal value of issued shares

Share premium
Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value
excess of nominal value less associated costs

Retained earnings All other net gains and losses not recognised  elsewhere
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1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

Disclosure exemptions adopted

The Parent Company financial statements of
Pelatro plc (the “Company”) have been prepared
in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
100 Application of Financial Reporting
Requirements and Financial Reporting Standard
101 Reduced Disclosure Framework and as
required by the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements are prepared under the
historical cost convention as modified for
financial instruments that are measured at fair
value and were approved for issue on 30 April
2018.

No profit and loss account is presented by the
Company as permitted by section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006.

In preparing these financial statements the
Company has taken advantage of all disclosure
exemptions conferred by FRS 101. Therefore,
these financial statements do not include:

certain disclosures regarding the Company's
capital

A statement of cash flows;
The effect of future accounting standards not
yet adopted;
The disclosure of the remuneration of key
management personnel; and
Disclosure of related party transactions with
other wholly-owned members of the Pelatro
Group.

In addition, and in accordance with FRS 101,
further disclosure exemptions have been
adopted because equivalent disclosures are
included in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements do not
include certain disclosures in respect of:

Business combinations;
Financial instruments (other than certain
disclosures required as a result of recording
financial instruments at fair value);
Fair value measurement (other than certain
disclosures required as a result of recording
financial instruments at fair value); and
Impairment of assets.

�

�

;

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Investments in subsidiaries

Financial assets

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less,
where appropriate, provisions for impairment.

Financial assets classified as held for trading and
other assets designated as such on inception are
included in this category. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for sale in the short term. Assets are carried in the
balance sheet at fair value with gains or losses on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
recognised in the profit and loss account. As at
the balance sheet date, the Company held no
such assets.

The Company assesses at each balance sheet
date whether a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to taxation authorities, based on tax rates
and laws that are enacted or substantively
enacted by the statement of financial position
date.

Deferred income tax is recognised on all
temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements, with the
following exceptions:

Where the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss;
In respect of taxable temporary differences
associated within investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future; and

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Income taxes

�

�

Impairment of financial assets

Taxation

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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� Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, carried
forward tax credits or tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply when the related asset is realised, or
liability is settled, based on tax rates and laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax
assets is reviewed at each statement of financial
position date. Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are offset only if a legally enforceable
right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities, the deferred income taxes
relate to the same taxation authority and that
authority permits the Group to make a single net
payment.

Income tax is charged or credited to other
comprehensive income or directly to equity if it
relates to items that are credited or charged to
other comprehensive income or directly to
equity. Otherwise, income tax is recognised in
the income statement.

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at an approximation of the
exchange rate ruling on the date of the
transaction.

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rate
ruling on the balance sheet date. Resulting
exchange gains and losses are taken to the profit
and loss account.

The Company has taken advantage of the
exemption under FRS 101 from disclosing related
party transactions with entities that are wholly
owned subsidiary undertakings of the Pelatro

Foreign currencies

Related party transactions

Group.

Rentals payable under operating leases are
charged in the profit and loss account on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the balance sheet date that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are as follows:

The carrying cost of the Company's investments

in subsidiary companies is reviewed at each

balance sheet date by reference to the income

that is projected to arise therefrom. From a

review of these projections, the Directors have

made no provisions against their carrying values

as shown in note 6 to the financial statements as

the Directors believe that the investments

concerned will generate sufficient economic

benefits to justify their carrying values.

The figures within the auditors' remuneration
note in the Pelatro consolidated financial
statements include fees charged by the
Company's auditors to Pelatro plc in respect of
audit and non-audit services. As such, no
separate disclosure has been given above.

Information concerning Directors' remuneration
can be found in note 10 to the Group financial
statements.

No dividends were declared or paid during the
year and no dividends will be proposed for
approval at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

Leasing commitments

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Investments in subsidiary companies

2 Critical accounting judgements and key

sources of estimation uncertainty

3 Auditor's remuneration

4 Directors' remuneration

5 Dividends paid and proposed

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6  Investment in subsidiaries

7  Trade and other receivables

8  Trade and other payables

9 Reserves

Share capital

The balance classified as share capital represents
the nominal value arising from the issue of the
Company's equity share capital, comprising 2.5
pence ordinary shares.

On 19 December 2017, the Company issued
6,102,212 new ordinary shares (ranking pari
passu with existing shares in issue) via a placing
to institutional shareholders. The shares were
issued at a placing price of 62.5 pence raising
$3,771,000 after expenses of $701,000 and direct
issue costs of $429,000.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

2017

USD'000

At 21 April -

Investment in the period 654

----------

At 31 December 654

2017

USD'000

Due within a year

Trade receivables 804

Other receivables 4

Prepayments 53

Intra-Group receivables 247

______

Total trade and other receivables 1,108

2017

USD'000

Due within a year

Trade payables 9

Other payables 106

Amounts due to related parties 30

Intra-Group payables 216

______

Total trade and other payables 406

Share premium

The balance classified as share premium
represents the premium arising from the issue of
the Company's equity share capital, comprising
2.5 pence ordinary shares, net of share issue
expenses. There are restrictions on the use of the
Share Premium Account. It can only be used for
bonus issues, to provide for the premium
payable on redemption of debentures, or to
write off preliminary expenses, or expenses of, or
restrictions on the use of the Share Premium
Account. It can only be used for bonus issues, to
provide for the premium payable on redemption
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

of debentures, or to write off preliminary expenses, or expenses of, or commissions paid on, or discounts
allowed on, the same issues of shares or debentures of the Company.

All other net gains and losses and transactions with owners (e.g. dividends) not recognised elsewhere.

There have been no significant events which have occurred subsequent to the reporting date.

The Company is exempt from disclosing transactions within the wholly-owned subsidiaries in the group.
Other related party transactions are included within those given in note 25 of the consolidated financial
statements.

Retained earnings

As at 31 December 2017 the Group had no material capital commitments nor any contingent liabilities.

10 Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

11 Events after the balance sheet date
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Nominated Adviser and Stockbroker

Auditor

Solicitors

Bankers

Registrars

Shareholder enquiries:

finnCap Limited

60 New Broad Street

London EC2M 1JJ

United Kingdom

Crowe Clark Whitehill LLP

St Bride's House, 10 Salisbury Square

London EC4Y 8EH

United Kingdom

Memery Crystal LLP

165 Fleet Street

London EC4A 2DY

United Kingdom

ICICI Bank UK PLC

One Thomas More Street

London E1W 1YN

United Kingdom

Bank of America, N.A.

80 Chestnut Ridge Road

Montvale, NJ 07645

United States of America

DBS Bank Ltd

12 Marina Boulevard

Marina Bay Financial Centre Tower 3

Singapore 018982

Kotak Mahindra Bank

4m-411 – S.K.L.N.S Complex, 3rd Block

Kammanahalli, Bangalore 560043

India

ICICI Bank Ltd

Kalyan Nagar, No.4 M-417, 80 Feet Road

HRBR 3rd Block, Kammanahalli

Kalyan Nagar, Bangalore 560043

India

Equiniti Limited

Aspect House , Spencer Road

Lancing, West Sussex, BN99 6DA

United Kingdom

Tel. 0371 384 2030* (from UK);

+44 121 415 7047 (from overseas)

* lines are open from 8.30am to 5.30pm Monday to Friday
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www.pelatro.com | info@pelatro.com

PELATRO PLC
49 QUEEN VICTORIA STREET

LONDON EC4N 4SA

UNITED KINGDOM

PELATRO LLC
110 SUMMIT AVENUE

MONTVALE, NJ 07645

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

PELATRO PTE. LTD.
ONE RAFFLES PLACE

#10-62, TOWER 2

SINGAPORE 048616

403, 7TH A MAIN, HRBR LAYOUT

KALYAN NAGAR, BANGALORE – 560043

INDIA

PELATRO SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD


